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In 2009 total assets rose

6.8/ and tota deposits rose

2.5 whie not incnrfle

commo stockholders

equity and book value rose

significantly Not income

increased 37 8% total

common stoct holders equity

rose 13.3 ar hook value

rose 13.2% to $13.34 per

sharc Our cornmhment to

customer serv cc combined

with our determination to

succeed through difficult

economic tin es has guided

rr any Bank leadership

decs 005 wIl ch led to these

impressive results TIle Bank

always works benef our

customers shareholders

ornmuniteS ld employees

Profile

First Guaranty Bancshares

Inc is the holding company

of Fast Guara lty Bank which

it wholly owns he Bank is

full service financial institution

with major presence

throughout cuisiana and

servos customers from its

1/ banking con or locations

Headquarterrd in Hammond

Louisiana thc Company

had 218 employees as of

Decenn her 31 2009 Visit

www.fgb.net for additional

inlormation

$0.64 $0.64
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2009 marked the 75 anniversary of First Guaranty Bank We are

pleased to he able to celebrate this landmark and to continue

to serve our customers As etleG on our history and long

standing ornnatment to customer ser ice we know that compk Ic

coininitine -it to customers our mission and our a1ues are

required ibr continued success Further we are cogn iant that we

must continually improve or customer oriented locus

As community bank First Guaranty Bank is able to pi O\ ide

customers with quick answers because our decisions are made

locally Our board members are local businessmen in tune with

the needs and goals of the towns and cities served Personal

attention is another First Guaranty Bank attribute that contributes

10 our longevity Because we know our customers we are able

to consider the person and their character when reviewing loan

applications Conmiunity banks focus attention on the needs of

stare
lamiltes hiisinesses nd farmers bahiniiig those needs with those

of shareholders employees and customers First Guaranty Bane

is very in olvcd with the community and is acti\ in many ci ic

and charitable organizations and events in all the comrnuirities

serve

At first Guaranty Bank ustomers and sharef older are treated

as more than number sincerely cared for as person and

appreciated as customer Bank management ensures the

limianctal product service ofterings expand to meet the banking

and financial needs of customers We oiler all the latest products

including remote deposit capture for commercial customers and

mobile banking

On our 75 anniversary we would not he here without the dedication

of our employees We take this opportunit to thank our eniployees

customers and shareholders all key to our future



75h anniversary is often relhrred to as the diamond anniversary

and signilled by the color white As expiained by The Diamond

Source at www.diasource.com the four Cs are four

variables that are used to calculate the value of diamond

Clarity Color Cut and Carat Weight Clarity describes the

clearness or purity of diamond This is determined by the

number size nature and location of the internal inclusions

and external blemishes imperfections

Color describes the anmuni of color the diamond contains Colors

can also range trorn intense yellow to brown blue green

pink and red These Ihncy colors are rare and therefore more

valuable

Cut refers to the proportions tinish symmnetry and polish of the

diamond These factors determine the tire and brilliance of

diamond Since Ihe quality of the cut is directly responsible

br the stones beauty he precisioln with which the facets are

arranged is of prime importance They determine the amount

of light reflected to the eye called brilliance

Carat is the unit of weight lhr 11w rliamnond Value per carat

increases with carat size because larger rough diamonds

occur less ftequcntly

Similar to the four cs used to calculate diamonds worth

many factors are considered by shareholders and customers

to determine banks value In addition to the community

bank mindset of customer service many resources are

available to confirm the bank is stable and secure Call

reports annual reports and quarterly statements provide

information regarding capital assets earnings liquidity

loans and mnanagemeni Banks are thoroughly examined by

regulators who review institution performance soundness

and risk mnanagement This aimual report should provide

great confidence that First Guaranty Bank is serving both

customers and shareholders well large flawless diamond

is known as paragon paragon is perfect diamond

flawless and without inclusions Though not perfect in every

respect Firsi Guaranly Bank has become paragon in

banking with our established pattern of excellence



With the vision of leadership commitment of management

and employees and continued Support of customers First

Guaianty Bank can expect brilliant future The word

diamond originates from Greek word meaning unalterable

unbreakable and proper First Guaranty Bank is unalterable

and unbreakable in its commitment and properly handles

all financial obligations in the letter and spirit of the laws

Diamonds have been valued as gemstones for er 3000

yeam We consider Firsm Guaranmy Bank gem

First Guaranty Bank is pleased to have the opportunity to serve

its cusiomem over the past 75 years In the past year many

have been concerned about the economic conditions and the

banking industry First Guaranfy Bank did nol have to curtail

any lending practices or reducing lending opportunities

We had long ago adopted high standards Further our

Chairman5 clarity ufviniun and knowledge enabled the Bank

to earn significant interest income and gains Iromn sales ol

assets Much like diamonds whose value increases First

Guaranty Banks hook alue per share has increased From

2008 to 2009 book value has increased over 20o

As we look ahead our objectives include continued growth arid an

unwavering focus on our mission values and goals We will

continue to offer the latet in tinancial pioclouG and services

to our cuslomers We strk to bc the paragon of community

banking We are local people serving local people and making

local decisions quickly As customer amid shareholder you

can expect to see continued emphasis on First Guaranty

Bank taking care of customers

Dir
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Customers

We believe that every customer is our most important customer

We endeavor fo provide levels of service that exceed their

expectations

Employees
We believe that our employees are our greatest asset as

demonstrated in their professionalism and dedcabon We

encourage open communication and strive to cultivate an

entrepreneurial environment which our employees feel highly

responsible for the performance of the Company We beleve

in an environment where they will contribute new ideas and

nnovations that will help both us and them excel

Stockholders

We seek to enhance stockholder value by continually improving

the quality of assets growth in earnings return on equity and

dividend payout

Comrnunity

We strive to be socially responsible corporate cbzen by

supporting community activities and encouraging employees to

he actively involved in our communities We are committed to the

success of the communities that we serve the same communities

our employees call home Our goal is to participate making our

communities better places in which to live work and play
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Dear Sharehokiers

For over 70 years First Guaranty Bank has stood rorg Louisiana ar

consistently weathered all types of adversity from recession rough wars

ard nahonal and iternatioral financial crises Through at advershy First

Guaranty Bank has continued to grow ard like diarrond ncrease in

value its sfareholdcrs This trend cont nucd in 2009 as First Guaranty

Banks earrings grew ki $7000000 for the year while the national and world

economies continued to struggle First Guararty Banks cess due

rst Guarantys ability under the eadershin of its Brard f/ha ryan and

anagemcnt to adapt to the changing economic situation First Guaranty

Bank expects to continue this strong growth in 2010

In the asl 10 years First Guaranty Ba ik ias acquired other ins tutions

or spe if branches of other institutions order to ncrease First Guaranty

Banks presence in tfe State of Louisiana and inrrease protability It is thc

ntent on the Board ot Directors and managemert of First Guaranty Ba ik

to conhnue th course ot action with future acquisitions In 2009 seveial

prop sals for verger and/or acquston were rev ewed and eva uated None

the oropsahc precented were sijered to contain the propel be ci cc ui

opportun ty oi profitability with preservation of the integrity of First Guararty

Bar For th reason none of these proposals were pursued It is the

ntention the Board of Directors ard rr anagement to continue to review

and evaluate opportunities which are presented in order to contiruc the

growt ano profitablity of First Guaranty Bank

Concurrcrtly with grow and ncreased
profitability through aquisitions

First Guaranty Bank cortinues to reduce expenses and reduce risk of loss

Ongoing steps arc being taken to strengther the infrastructure of rst

Gucici
ty Burie ann to increase accouritab hity

Additior ally new programs and proceoures have been irtroduced and put

nb effect inder the gudarce of Presiden Mike Sharp to take advantage of

the estru tuiing of the bankng ndustry and ncrease the volume of loans

ield by First Guaranty Bank the Credit Department is carefu ly rrutinizing

and evaluating oan opportunities presented in order to ersure the qual ty

the oiri portfol is maintained

the stage set First Guaranty Bank low nas ite opportunity to xiake

gndn atop fuiwdiu tue year 2Dlu Anotner step lorward to ncrease

value for shareholders and the diamond that is First Guaranty Bank

ncerely

Alton Lewis Jr

ir fir tc

it arC cc



/o rs ars at ebra ag ouis ara ufural hentage That

eha hr Guar Bar Wo are su osfu OtateLdc ocr pany anc do we

or arko wr orve Ha stte argot pelati
nba which we ro located

ra rca pe to ir ag op ba of dop st gaff or ng wit riu ty

rer stw Kr di Lu for

Ma er so so en rd woro ose or nad poor ri go esult

srr Id air wfr ed of Ge ra had earrings to irg $7.6 Ci Ofl

2007 or in ao e7.8 ye 2008 period be Bar ks oook value oer re

so 13.34 it year ii e009 up ror $11.78 for year ord 2008 hs cearv

ir ar ad ig red feffco ir gh nvo vod ard if

Dret IL

It or dti
pr

rae us ry igr
rI oppodun ty for rot

Cr ira so ra roao .te ire 2009 wo roinvigorat our rkot ng

rr love ope if orb ty Ii irg ondcr al ing or grams Tb effor1

its HI Eve reo no Ii Sfa thc opec ye Regio Ma agers dci

rw1 tirdeL Ii fr nf rJ effnc rnairti .he pe
mt ir of

cii na ror bog irg to sbrw reaturos eb unc ro quar

ci lEO ro sate er ng broaderec Sales or to HOes lothing and

lure you ii ii ted 6.7 .3 aid 1.o re pecfivrly

sti coo in .rr lire tsr iu better fban rio oThor tares Oar uoemp oyrr cut

Cain iv tI an average ano ale govorrrmc it 11 rat ng ave

sg ai pr ved rerull if iscal ir ie Lo sara osure rats owor

of fC cI onor vorsilld North Lou anas Shreveport Bossier

MSA wi idd rho tI is cxl lb oslo -r ng from aynosvil as ar

otivify ti ii purr an anraco ai oai Suite roe tu Buiksu Ar

rio Ba gbrroy ruL projects Iho Ia ge SWEPCO gao rod part add or

ci um aroao pr dl conorric oupporf wtb the mber poultry aid farm rg

it rpr
Ir lrrwe ar wo experie cod ted servi groHh and mproving

ra Irur ire pa lou ary roe iou sugar ie Southeast Lu oana outiri so to

nr ri by
held servi ppori urotors rourisri sri busireo

is ry expa rsi

rs Cu rrntvs oar orff ii esfs is so re dive sty rd peralrs throe areas

.rihed abovo su Iry ur stale que and this qun i4y
ake First Guaranty Bank

to oeop of
ci sara are ntrorerlly or alivo on vs se sIr ng of our

ri hr ssi rc iteolure or liloratur ndo us Fe thor

or yu corp ir in if yo re ustomer pease

Sr ey

Michael Sharp



Severty tive years ago thc ounny was ii the hroes of the Great Depress or

must bays taken grcat wet of ophniism and aitt the tuture tor irveston to

ave tartc omme cal bank in the midst ot widcspread rc rornic ard

turmoil of 1934 But that is exactly what founders ot First Guaranty Bar dic

As write his ountrys ororry ortrues ir them ist worst dowr tun

since pos WW Recenty state uncmpoyrrent rates klectvcy res ighty

under dcublc digits with n.n states duct ng this sta tical snies igreft

unempioymert ratcs sirce eptor as he oriorty rters its 28th tr

since hc downturn begar Morcover ndustra producticn pp bclow tI

2002 eve sevcra mortho ast year Yet arother rid cation or the soya ty ot

the urrc dowr urn was tha tte US noor ed tie fewest barre or cc

decade although perhaps fi ien es in orsur iption ievcd ove rener

years itt vita ccmr odity tave crrbined with red ired ecoro xc actvty

ie gcneratc thc res

Stili also can ird reaso tor opt -n sn ie iutuie soite the ab ye

tatist cc ha sin rk leasJr by ft oOO har rc roJ

73 ts lows srro 13 months ago remain rg yec below pas
te mrst recen market cycle Marufacturing increased at its aste rate

ian five ars Perb ips ct so ir.c dertly mmodity pr ces have rob ii dec

as pper piat urn and ol pr ccs ft 17 nighs Al th and on must

ortinue ositivc Ocr os se before the oos narkft ul recovns ut

eas tE arerrpoymcrt rat las 10 reased si ice each ng 261 ar 0r ct

10.1 Octcbero as ye

Mrrc ou saras ployrierit rate sorre 200 ass P0 nts cow tt

iatiuo ov rdgr icr ro nan oUU oas nts oe ow ts statisti su icc igt

go ng ha to Ja tuary 1976 Per iaps th factor has or buted Io uisianr

thrce ois 2ive yea of ropulatio rugratior wiG more pe pIe Toying

Louisiara rr oth status an out In fact nie estimatc the states live year

pula ion proj 1.7/ growth rate

rc Guaranty in bed 2009 prolita iu ly rr porrar th re apit

Iota on equ irrr asci 13.3 ycaroverycar ani was ccsary

uppo balanco sheet growth Oas and uturc Pro itabi
ity is ftc irn

icfcnse against niarcial adversity md we avu budgetcd ii reascd pror abi ity

2010 oropared lb 2009s results Just as our fo nders id years

tare toe tuture with spin of optm sm and sensc rerewa

Larry Stark



year 009 cc art ir oe sa We have or aiovidir our

etc is ard ii unit us /5 yea ci Guar rite great products

nd rv his eie of ovum rt oul iot have mr ea had lout

icc cal In Bc ird of Dec tc re Mar agorren and at ong with the

UpO ir oy ir ist si cu nolders

dug 111 rig rr 008 iinuir iro gi 009 ii our ry 5as aecci ed

th lob ii dc wri cii the ci Pr cm .1 urlgage se tal rg 10 ie

cc n\/c tr 51 ilures igf te red Wit th tra ted 0DB

mccli Pro hue the mpcs ar oown cc

cat press

hr Lougi mcii rr irT 2009 fe cpa retle eJ $7.6 II

cc 37.8 cc macc rr or ym ar gs rr 11130 ill

aced 51.26 009 rn 0.99 2008 ire ase 27 009

ar re iced ri atcc her payii ects ci divid mds its

.are ii im We pe report at Fir Gua arty Ban arcs id

Q.O4 pr lmi hare in it ri hers

rid sf cc us ia iic reaed /2 ver tf last ive years

ii oar divi Ir yo at wa 50.8 2009

roligf 0111 009 cc ou expc icr cc 140 Iii roe most s.nce

bii rise II at 80 tf ar 990 le ohs did rave

ar uppor rred wh Ocr frIar aro dec

01 va be uric Opt un cyn cr1 rc awl ma oa

Ic for CCI ill ritie rtl ic cc panv va cap5a i701

Ic fim f1yg ones eohytclDlC.AtDecerber3

001 /4 iii rnpreu 0rT .3 iu rim ow

008 rca 13

agprep irco Ii Ui cer sOs dc ii ed 5.3

30/ ci 2008 ir cc ri reased 6.8 Asset Ia cd $930.8 lion

15cr 31 519 pared 98 1.2 Omeribe P008

Be ccci Ivorap me fe at Dc or 31 2009 wa 0.09 Our rctur

\eragc ass Its 0cc oh 31 2009 was 0.80 orcp red to 0.69 as

cccr her 31 2008

vie ar irouc rye US IC 105 sO Dam udE

ook to nI un icr np 0rm amer servFce sati iO and

Gla turd gr dy n.m ute

SIn

Michele LoBianco

Ii



ice 934 i3t arlnty Bane has orovided groat serv4e hardw rking

usi rncrs varous nmrnun ties hrougbout the State of Lou siana

idino instituto in its 76th year loper or the ortinued corr tmcnt to

our ers guarantee for nary years nb ihe future

Southwest isiar the eff cis urr can ta aid Ike are soc

ading as sur igr cukure oust mers are abc to rease tfc acreage ct roe

be rg olar ted due to The gradual flue og saltwater frow farm anc and

rngation canals Th sl ut steady dn re se sa in ty Las also her efit

our ca ky ncreasing the pmoduc ii of raw sh

rst ara Banks Sruthwest Bareirg Cen ers aga prosperso

009 oi rn ai busines ending count and depositc nave reas

The Abtevi Ic Bark rg Cc iter experienced ar in rease deTh sits of

approxirra ely $4.6 nil on and ar ncrease bars of apprixiwately $9

ci Ii in all while keopng de iiqucr ar loss at nimurr Likew se are

linen that tfe Jenn ngs Bank rg Cm ii shnnld cn in heg tn cc

nere se ml Han volu cc and deposts

applaud the ntr icd oem trmr rt of our dworking mployees toward

superior ustomcr servi Their dedication nd loyalty to this great inst tut

II result the ont rued success of first Guaranty Bank to the future

Glenn Duhon Sr

dCr el



21 nra 55

mofu er wifE ii gre at ie oundr is of

Bane Ba wi op eve tf eFr

Jrr is Ia Ever is of ft DepresGon tEe

prt
rd iii wrr at tie oh rot Guar fly Bane Sue

ttr cisc Guararty Ban resp etid

Fr ir iceo /5 yea 19/4 ii /5
yr ars

ía

thor rtar it nh if

it p.s
wlh or tone

or iT1Cda ow rvwtt Ii

ers vF al ad

er duo .s os bat FIr

no IF sert ire aOl fi

rod ri atFi

Bar an he ers na

4s ph rs Giararty Bark

rn tr nsor iat they re

eel erent nsf cr5 and

Cs ir ia er Yng our

to expa or oroaJFi our

sa gipuCi
Por ow hy 425 2009 ev

ho ow lema or rs ior onst uctn ard develcpr cit

is aF ket Guarar ty Ban ont nucs to grow and rcma OF

JuC ibF ry to ft ri cc oans mark By yew tyrg our

31 Cr to wC uc gr iwr .ntr other segrr or is of ft arkct Dur rig

Fm irar ty
IrFI do rt we ode arkats wedS typee wpFte

th ri It Fi ir

1St Cr ia rr wth savv icrea 03 govw cent

sts iga IFS ar Tar pah Par oh We pan to Fiue FF5 trend

gruw wr it np Jr fFeev di UU ii 5FUUU Ic aflu VFace

Wa re uC /5 Guara to Great Year ec irough tie

rlsFght
anl eOnFF ill ir to lid fig ía hers arehoFders Frectors

rs iii rp oyres ook forward her prosperous year

Ma II bley

Ser var fire ft nd Ca rrc ci Lerd

Cu runty Squ

rot CF

Ci

Ic

es

rd

Mark Mobley



First Guaranty Bank OFFICERS

Ca ci ePr
Ex 01

arS

Pr ru

Fr

ySli

Hr Prr dc

ri

Ui

LID
rca ySqu

cC
Pr

ii

Sot us
ySiar

Bagwe

iias BritFcrc

Ct cry Brun ed

sr ipC er Cokr

Re iaa Edrian

Derar tche

rria He Kerr

Stephc arc p1

\/era Ma ws

ar Corr

Karer Per

tvar E/.Srper

eS.Ycjig

er Dune

icFrA.Ga pard

icy GD

LudrcF Halag

kk Ke ey

Roacd ze

Jeren Mo re

Par REman

Chnaty We

Edward Bertc

Par Ha Carr cc

ranc rn gtar

Va icasa Drew

Jak Cu

Jea ineDe Ems

Dane Fe Fndg

Fran es Mash

Atfary Mo re

Mrcha Mosbey

Dan Patte

ScAt Sea ire

Lsa Fompsri

Randy Cr aFr

Jaflery Wa nwnghc

Any Wa Cs

Deborat WestrnorHan

f/n



Banks Headquartered in Louisiana Ranked by Asset Size as of December 31 2009
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Whitney National Bank

Iberiabank

Bancock Bank of Louisiana

Community Trust Bank

First NBC Bank

Gulf Coast Bank and Trust Company

MidSouth Bank National Association

First Bank and Trust

First Guaranty Bank

Red River Bank

Cameron State Bank

Omni Bank

First American Bank and Trust

Sabine State Bank and Trust Company

Business First Bank

Crescent Bank Trust

The Evangeline Bank and Trust Company

Jeff Davis Bank Trust Company

Concordia Bank Trust Company

American Gateway Bank

Ouachita Independent Bank

The Peoples State Bank

Liberty Bank and Trust Company

Central Progressive Bank

Community Bank

Progressive Bank

Citizens National Bank NA
Resource Bank

First Rational Bankers Bank

South Louisiana Bank Bouma LA

Coastal Commerce Bank

Metairie Bank Trust Company

St Martin Bank and Trust Company

Bank of Commerce Trust Co

Synergy Bank

Bank Trust Company

Cross Keys Bank

Cottonport
Bank

Southeru Beritage
Bank

Gulf Coast Bank

Community Bank of Louisiana

St Landxy Bank and Trust Company

The Union Bank

Farmers-Merchants Bank Trust Company

Statewide Bank

Merchants Farmers Bank Trust Company

City Bank Trust Co

Iberville Bank

Patterson State Bank

Rayne State Bank Trust Company

First Rational Bank of Louisiana

Citizens Bank

Community First Bank

Richiand State Bank

Citizens Bank Trust Company

United Community Bank

Delta Bank

Gibsland Bank Trust Company

First National l3ank in DeRidder

First National Bank

City Savings Bank Trust Company

First National Bank USA

Investar Bank

Bank of Zachary

Mississippi River Bank

The First Rational Bank of Jeanerette

Tn-Parish Bank

New Orleans

Lafayette

Baton Rouge

Choudrant

New Orleans

New Orleans

Lafayette

New Orleans

Hammond
Alexandria

Lake Charles

Metairie

Vacherie

Many

Baton Rouge

New Orleans

Ville Platte

Jennings

Vidalia

Baton Rouge

Monroe

Many

New Orleans

Locombe

Raceland

Winnsboro

Bossier City

Covington

Baton Rouge

Bouma

Bouma

Metairie

St Martinville

Crowley

Houma

Morgan City

Saint Joseph

Cottonport

Jonesville

Abbeville

Mansfield

Opelousas

Marksville

Breaux Bridge

Covington

Leesville

Natchitoches

Plaquemine

Patterson

Rayne

Crowley

Ville Platte

New Iberia

Rayville

Plaquemine

Gonzales

Vidalia

Gibsland

Dc Ridder

Arcadia

De Ridder

Boutte

Baton Rouge

Zachary

Belle Chasse

Jearierette

Eunice

Bank of Montgomery

Fidelity Bank

South Lofourche Bank Trust Company

Bank of Abbeville Trust Company

Citizens Bank Trust Company

American Bank Trust Company

Bank of Coushatta

Citizens Bank Trust Company of Vivian LA

The Bighiands Bank

Plaquemine Bank Trust Company

The Bank

Marion State Bank

First Community Bank

Peoples Bank and Trust Company

of Fointe Coupee Parish

First Louisiana Bank

Washington State Bank

Franklin State Bank Trust Company

Guaranty Bank Trust Company of Delhi LA

Jonesboro State Bank

Bank of Winnfield Trust Company

Citizens Bank Trust Company

Guaranty Bank and Trust Company

Tensas State Bank

First Louisiana National Bank

Guaranty Bank

Winnsboro State Bank Trust Company

Vermilion Bank Trust Company

Feliciana Bank Trust Company

American Bank Trust Company

Bank of Sunset and Trust Company

Exchange Bank and Trust Company

Natehitoehes LA

State Bank Trust Company

Caldwell Bank Trust Company

Bank of Greensburg

Catahoula LoSalle Bank

Bank of St Franeisville

Landmark Bank

Bank of Louisiana

Kaplan State Bank

Bank of Gueydan

Colfax Banking Company

Farmers State Bank Trust Co

Bank of Emth

Teche Bank Trust Co

Bank of Jena

Jackson Parish Bank

Citizens Progressive Bank

The Veruon Bank

Bodge Bank Trust Company

Simmesport State Bank

Bank of Ringgold

The Bank of Commerce

First National Bank of Benton

Basile State Bank

Bank of Maringouin

Bank of Oak Ridge

Church Foint Bank and Trust Company

South Louisiana Business Bank

The Mer Rouge State Bank

Commercial Capital Bank

Tn-State Bank and Trust

Sicily Island State Bank

Progressive
National Bank of DeSoto Parish

West Carroll Community Bank

Peoples Bank

The Merchants Farmers Bank

Montgomery

Baton Rouge

Lorose

Abbeville

Springhilt

Opelousas

Coushatta

Vivian

Jackson

Plaquemine

Jennings

Marion

Bammond

New Roads

Shreveport

Washington

Winnsboro

Delhi

Jonesboro

Winnfield

Covington

New Roads

Newellton

Breaux Bridge

Mamou

Winnsboro

Kaplan

Clinton

Covington

Sunset

Natehitoehes

Golden Meadow

Columbia

Greensburg

Jonesville

St Franeisville

Clinton

New Orleans

Kaplan

Oueydan

Colfax

Church Foint

Erath

Saint Martinville

Jena

Jonesboro

Columbia

Loesville

Bodge

Simmesport

Ringgold

White Castle

Benton

Basile

Maringouin

Oak Ridge

Church Point

Prairieville

Mer Rouge

Delhi

Baughton

Sicily Island

Mansfield

Oak Drove

Chatham

Melville
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75 Guaranteed Great Years

Banking Centers

South Louisiana

Abbeville Banking Center 337 893-1777 800 306-3276

799 West Summers Drive Abbeville LA 70510

Amite Banking Center 985 748-51 11

100 East Oak Street Amite LA 70422

Denham Springs Banking Center 225 791-7964

2231 South Range Ave Denham Springs LA 70726

HAMMOND BANKING CENTERS

Guaranty Square 985 375-0300 888 375-3093

400 East Thomas Street Hammond LA 70401

Guaranty West 985 375-0371

2111 West Thomas Street Hammond LA 70401

Independence Banking Center 985 878-6777

455 West Railroad Avenue Independence LA 70443

Jennings Banking Center 337 824-1712

500 North Cary Jennings LA 70546

Kentwood Banking Center 985 229-3361

301 Avenue Kentwood LA 70444

PONCHATOULA BANKING CENTERS

Ponchatoula 985 386-2000

170 West Hickory Street Ponchatoula LA 70454

Berryland 985 386-5430

105 Berryland Shopping Ctr Ponchatoula LA 70454

Walker Banking Center 225 664-5549

29815 Walker Road South Walker LA 70785

North Louisiana

Benton Banking Center 318 965-2221

189 Burt Boulevard Benton LA 71006

Dubach Banking Center 318 777-3461

117 East Hico Street Dubach LA 71235

Haynesville Banking Center 318 624-1171

10065 Highway 79 Haynesville LA 71038

Homer Banking Center 318 927-3000

401 North 2nd Street Homer LA 71040

Oil City Banking Center 318 995-6682

126 South Highway Oil City LA 71061

Vivian Banking Center 318 375-3202

102 East Louisiana Avenue Vivian LA 71082

Service24 ATM Locations

South Louisiana

Abbeville LA 799 West Summers Drive

Amite LA 100 East Oak Street

Denham Springs LA 2231 South Range Avenue

Hammond LA

1201 West University Avenue

14145 West University Avenue

2111 West Thomas Street

400 East Thomas Street

North Oaks Medical Center

North Oaks Diagnostic Center

North Oaks Rehabilitation Center

Independence LA 455 West Railroad Avenue

Jennings LA 500 North Cary

Kentwood LA 708 Avenue

Loranger LA 19518 Highway 40

Ponchatoula LA

105 Berryland Shopping Center

170 West Hickory Street

Robert LA 22628 Highway 190

Walker Louisiana 29815 Walker Road South

North Louisiana

Benton LA 189 Burt Boulevard

Dubach LA 117 East Hico Street

Haynesville LA 10065 Highway 79

Homer LA

401 North 2nd Street

Homer Memorial Hospital

Oil City LA 126 South Highway

Vivian LA 102 East Louisiana Avenue
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75 Guaranteed Great Years

ManagementsDiscussion Analysis of

Financial Condition Results of Operation

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

At or For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

dollars in thousands

Year End Balance Sheet Data

Securities $261829 $139162 $142068 $158352 $175200
Federal funds sold 13279 838 35869 6793 1786
Loans net of unearned income 589902 606369 575256 507195 491582
Allowance for loan losses 7919 6482 6193 6675 7597
Total assets111 930847 871233 807994 715216 713544
Total deposits 799746 780372 723094 626293 632908
Borrowings 31929 18122 13494 24568 22132
Stockholders equity111 94935 65487 66355 59471 53923
Stockholders common equity111 74165 65487 66355 59471 53923

Average Balance Sheet Data

Securities $245952 $127586 $152990 $178419 $109236
Federal funds sold 24662 17247 8083 3115 6028
Loans net of unearned income 599609 600854 543946 505623 476144
Total earning assets 906158 752093 712212 690057 595141
Total assets 948556 797024 751237 726593 631554
Total deposits 842274 707114 658456 622869 526995
Borrowings 22907 16287 23450 42435 45732
Stockholders equity 77135 67769 63564 56640 54901
Stockholders common equity 70055 67769 63564 56640 54901

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets 0.80% 0.69% 1.30% 1.16% 0.95%
Return on average common equity 10.84% 8.13% 15.37% 14.88% 10.89%
Return on average tangible assets121 0.80% 0.69% 1.30% 1.16% 0.96%
Return on average tangible common equity131 11.14% 8.77% 16.47% 15.73% 11.24%
Net interest margin 357% 4.25% 4.79% 4.60% 4.71%

Average loans to average deposits 71.19% 84.97% 82.61% 81.18% 90.35%

Efficiency ratio111 60.80% 70.73% 55.80% 51.80% 55.44%

Efficiency ratio excluding amortization of

intangibles and securities transactions111 61.99% 61.20% 54.59% 49.90% 53.66%

Full-time equivalent employees year end 230 225 222 196 189

ii For the years ended 2006 2007 and 2008 amounts have been restated to reflect prior penod adjustments See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

Average tangible assets represent average assets less average core deposit intangibles

Average tangible equity represents average equity less average core deposit intangibles

32
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At or For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Capital Ratios

Average stockholders equity to average assets 8.13% 8.50% 8.46% 7.80% 8.69%

Average tangible equity to average

tangible assetsil2i 7.95% 8.25% 8.31% 7.71% 8.51%

Stockholders equity to total assetsi 7.97% 7.52% 8.2 1% 8.32% 7.56%

Tier leverage capitalisi
9.58% 7.88% 7.38% 8.11% 7.67%

Tier capitali3t
11.90% 9.19% 10.13% 9.85% 8.80%

Total risk-based capitalisi
12.97% 10.11% 11.09% 10.96% 10.05%

Income Data

dollars in thousands

Interest income $47191 $47661 $55480 $50937 $40329

Interest expense1 14844 15881 21934 19769 12435

Net interest incom3i 32347 31780 33546 31168 27894

Provision for loan losses 4155 1634 1918 4419 5621

Noninterest income

excluding securities transactions 5909 5689 5176 4601 5221

Securities gains losses 2056 478 234

Loss on securities impairment 829 4611

Noninterest expenseiai 24007 23241 21341 18373 18399

Earnings before income taxesi3 11321 7982 14985 12744 9102

Net incomei3i 7595 5512 9772 8431 5979

Net income available to common shareholders131 7001 5512 9772 8431 5979

Per Common Share Data141

Net earnings131 $1.26 $0.99 $1.76 $1.52 $1.08

Cash dividends paid
0.64 0.64 0.63 0.60 0.57

Book value1 13.34 11.78 11.94 10.70 9.70

Dividend payout ratio1 50.82% 64.53% 35.85% 39.56% 53.07%

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644

Number of shares outstanding year end 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644

Market data

High $25.00 $25.00 $24.30 $23.42 $20.00

Low $12.00 $24.30 $23.42 $18.57 $15.27

Trading Volume 165386 368454 924692 535264 279503

Stockholders of record 1356 1343 1293 1181 1141

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.68% 1.14% 1.39% 1.86% 3.08%

Nonperforming assets to loans 2.65% 1.63% 1.95% 2.62% 4.48%

Loan loss reserve to nonperforming assets 50.68% 65.46% 55.26% 51.53% 34.92%

Net charge-offs to average loans 0.45% 0.22% 0.50% 1.06% 0.83%

Provision for loan loss to average loans 0.69% 0.27% 0.35% 0.87% 1.18%

Allowance for loan loss to total loans 1.34% 1.07% 1.08% 1.32% 1.55%

Average tangible assets represents average assets less average core deposit intangibles

Average tangible equity represents average equity less average core deposit intangibles

For the years ended 2006 2007 and 2008 amounts have been restated to reflect prior period adjustments See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

For the year ended 2005 amounts have been restated to reflect stock dividend of one-third of share of $1 par value common stock for each share

of $1 and $5 par value common stock outstanding accounted for as four-for-three stock split effective and payable to stockholders of record as of

October 20 2005 33
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Introduction

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc became the holding

company for First Guaranty Bank on July 27 2007

in corporate reorganization Prior to becoming

the holding company of First Guaranty Bank First

Guaranty Bancshares Inc had no assets liabilities or

operations

This discussion and analysis reflects our financial

statements and other relevant statistical data and is

intended to enhance your understandingofourfinancial

condition and results of operations Reference should

be made to the Consolidated Financial Statements

and the Selected Financial Data presented in this

report in order to obtain better understanding of the

commentary which follows

Special Note Regarding Forward-

Looking Statements

Congress passed the Private Securities Litigation Act

of 1995 in an effort to encourage corporations to

provide information about companys anticipated

future financial performance This act provides safe

harbor for such disclosure which protects us from

unwarranted litigation if actual results are different

from Managements expectations This discussion

and analysis contains forward-looking statements and

reflects Managements current views and estimates of

future economic circumstances industry conditions

company performance and financial results The words

may should expect anticipate intend

plan continue believe seek estimate and

similar expressions are intended to identify forward-

looking statements These forward-looking statements

are subject to number of factors and uncertainties

which could cause our actual results and experience

to differ from the anticipated results and expectations

expressed in such forward-looking statements

Application of Critical Accounting
Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

conform to generally accepted accounting principles

in the United States of America and to predominant

accounting practices within the banking industry

Certain critical accounting policies require judgment

and estimates which are used in the preparation of the

financial statements

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of

Investment Securities

Securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether

decline in their value is other-than-temporary The

term other-than-temporary is not intended to indicate

permanent decline in value Rather it means that

the prospects for near term recovery of value are not

necessarily favorable or that there is lack of evidence to

support fair values equal to or greater than the carrying

value of the investment Management reviews criteria

such as the magnitude and duration of the decline

the reasons for the decline and the performance and

valuation of the underlying collateral when applicable to

predict whether the loss in value is other-than-temporary

Once decline in value is determined to be other-than-

temporary the carrying value of the security is reduced

to its fair value and corresponding charge to earnings

is recognized

Allowance for Loan Losses The Companys most

critical accounting policy relates to its allowance for

loan losses The allowance for loan losses is established

through provision for loan losses charged to expense

Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses

when Management believes that the collectability of the

principal is unlikely The allowance which is based on

the evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior loan

loss experience is an amount Management believes will

be adequate to reflect the risks inherent in the existing

loan portfolio and that exist at the reporting date The

evaluations take into consideration number of subjective

factors including changes in the nature and volume

of the loan portfolio overall portfolio quality review of

specific problem loans current economic conditions that

may affect borrowers
ability to pay adequacy of loan

collateral and other relevant factors

Changes in such estimates may have significant impact

on the financial statements For further discussion of

the allowance for loan losses see the Allowance for

Loan Losses section of this analysis and Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Valuation of Goodwill Intangible Assets and

Other Purchase Accounting Adjustments

The Company accounts for goodwill and intangible

assets in accordance with FASB ASC 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other SFAS No 142 Under FASB

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHAR ES INC
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ASC 350 goodwill and intangible assets deemed to

have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are

subject to annual impairment tests in accordance

with the provision of FASB ASC 350 The Companys

goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis

or more often if events or circumstances indicate that

there may be impairment goodwill impairment test

includes two steps Step one used to identify potential

impairment compares the estimated fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including

goodwill If the estimated fair value of reporting unit

exceeds its carrying amount goodwill of the reporting

unit is considered not impaired If the carrying amount

of reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value

the second step of the goodwill impairment test is

performed to measure the amount of impairment

loss if any Step two of the goodwill impairment test

compares the implied estimated fair value of reporting

unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill

If the carrying amount of goodwill for that reporting unit

exceeds the implied fair value of that units goodwill

an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal

to that excess Based on Managements goodwill

impairment tests there was no impairment of goodwill

at December 31 2009 For additional information

on goodwill and intangible assets see Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Condition

Assets Total assets at December 31 2009 were

$930.8 million an increase of $59.6 million or 6.8%

from $871.2 million at December 31 2008 Federal

funds sold increased $12.4 million from December

31 2008 to December 31 2009 and loans for the

same period decreased $16.5 million Cash and due

from banks decreased $43.7 from 2008 to 2009

Additionally total investment securities increased

$122.7 million to $261.8 million from December 31

2008 to December 31 2009 Total deposits increased

by $19.4 million or 2.5% from 2008 to 2009 At

December 31 2009 long-term borrowings were $20.0

million an increase of $11.6 million or 139.4% from

$8.4 million at December 31 2008

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash

equivalents at December 31 2009 totaled $46.7

million decrease of $31.3 million compared to $78.0

million at December 31 2008 Cash and due from

banks decreased $43.7 million and federal funds sold

increased $12.4 million The decrease in cash and cash

equivalents reflects Managements decision to increase

its investment in higher yielding investment securities

Investment Securities The securities portfolio

consisted principally of U.S Government agency

securities mortgage-backed obligations asset-backed

securities corporate debt securities and mutual funds

or other equity securities The securities portfolio

provides us with relatively stable source of income

and provides balance to interest rate and credit risks

as compared to other categories of assets

The securities portfolio totaled $261.8 million at

December 31 2009 representing an increase of

$122.7 million from December 31 2008 The primary

changes in the portfolio consisted of $1.4 billion in

purchases sales totaling $21.8 million calls and

maturities of $1.3 billion An other-than-temporary

impairment charge totaling $0.8 million was taken on six

securities during 2009 See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information

At December 31 2009 approximately 3.5% of the

securities portfolio excluding Federal Home Loan Bank

stock matures in less than one year while securities

with maturity dates over 10 years totaled 25.2% of the

portfolio At December 31 2009 the average maturity

of the securities portfolio was 6.3 years compared to

the average maturity at December 31 2008 of 3.7

years

At December 31 2009 securities totaling $249.5

million were classified as available for sale and $12.3

million were classified as held to maturity as compared

to $114.4 million and $24.8 million respectively at

December 31 2008

Securities classified as available for sale are measured

at fair market value For these securities the Company

obtains fair value measurements from an independent

pricing service The fair value measurements consider

observable data that may include dealer quotes market

spreads cash flows market yield curves prepayment

speeds credit information and the instruments

contractual terms and conditions among other things

Securities classified as held to maturity are measured at

book value See Note and Note 20 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information
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The hook yie ds on securihes available for sale ranged

from 0.8 to 19.9 at December 31 2009 exclusive

of the olfect of charges in Ta value reflected as

component of stockolders equdy The hook yields on

he to mnaturity se ur es ranged Iron 3.6 to 530

Securihes assif cc as available for sale bad gross

unreal 7ed losses tola ing $2.8 milton at Dccc nber 31

2009 Thesc losses include $1.6 mi lion in unreal zed

osses on U.S Govrrment ager cy securt es which

have been loss pos tiori for less than 12 months

he Company believes that will collect all amounts

ontractually due ard has the ntent and the ab
lity

to hold thesc securit es until the fair value is at least

equal to the carrying value At December 31 2008

securities assitiod as available for sale had gross

unrealized losses totaling $5.7 million See Note to

the Consol dated nancial Statements for additional

nformation

Average securit cc as percentage of average interest

arning assets were 27.1 and 17.0 at December

31 2009 and 2008 respect ye This increase

reflected part Managements decision to display

ertain arrount ot funds into irvestment securibes

rather than loans manage out interest rate risk in

low ir terest rate ronment 2009 At Decen ber

31 2009 63.6 mi lion of the total securties portfolio

not qualify as fladgeable securities to collateralize

epurchase agreemo 3s and public funds compared to

$54.1 mi lion in securities held at December 31 2008

At Decenber 31 2009 arid 2008 $154.5 million and

$85.4 rn Ilion in socirties were pledged respectively

Mortgage Loans Held

for Sale The Company

did not hold ary mortgage

loans for sale at December

31 2009 or December 31

2008

Loans The origination of

loans is the primary usc

of our financial resources

ad apiaaauts th largest

component of earning assets

At December 31 2009 the

oan portfolio loans net of

unearned income totaled

$589.9 million decrease of

approximately $16.5 million

or 2.7c from the December 31 2008 level of $606.4

million The decrease in net loans primarily includes

reduction of $13.3 million in real estate construct on and

land development loans and reduction of $23.2 mi lion

commercial and ndustrial loans partially offset with

an increase of $38.9 II on in non farm non residentia

oans secured by real estate

Loans to related part es are nc uded in total loans

Related parties inc ude the Companys executive

off cers directors and certain business organizations

and individuals with wh ch such persons are assoc ated

At December 31 2009 and 2008 loans to related parties

totaled $23.3 million and $22.5 mi lion respectively See

Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information

Loans represented 73.8% of deposits at December 31

2009 compared to 77.7c of deposits at December

31 2008 Loans secured by real estate increased

$11.9 iSI ion to $477.1 mi ion at December 31 2009

Commercial and industrial loans decreased $23.2 mill on

to $82.3 million at December 31 2009 Real estate

and related loans comprised 80.9% of the portfolio in

2009 as compared to 76.7 in 2008 Commercial and

industrial loans comprised 14.0c of the portfolio in 2009

as compared to 17.4 in 2008

Loan charge otfs taken during 2009 totaled $2.9 million

compared to chargmoffs of $1.6 million in 2008 01 the

oan charge oils in 2009 approximately $1.6 million

were loans secured by real estate $0.7 Ilion were

commercial and industrial loans and $0.6 million were

$930.8

$713.5 $715.2
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Nortperforming Assets Non0er%rrnng as%s

were $1 .6 miD or 1.1 of total assets at December

31 2009 compared to $9.9 million or 1.1 ot total

assets at Decere her 31 2008 The ncrease resulted

from $5.1 milton or 55.4 increase ft nonaccrual

oans an increa of $0.6 mit ion in 90 days past due

oans and an ir crease of $0.1 miflion in other real

estate The ncr ase in nonaccrual oans was phmarfy

in construction and and development family

residentia nonfarm ion residential and commercial

and industrial loans The increase in othcr real estate

was primanly thc result of an increase in non farm

nonreside itial properties

Deposits To al deposits increased by $19.4 million

or 2.5% to $799./ million at December 31 2009

from $780.4 mil ion at December 31 2008 In 2009

nonirterest bcar ng demand deposits increased $13.6

million interest bearing demand deposits increased

$8.0 miilnn and avngs deposits decreased $1

million Time deposits decreased $1.1 million or 0.3/

which includes brokered deposits totaling $10.1 million

in reciprcx al time deposits acquired from the Certificate

of Depos count Registry Service CDARS The

or rease in deposits was due to $23.3 million

decrease individual and business deposits offset with

$42./ million incrcase in public fund deposits The

increase in publi fund deposits was the primary result

cf three nuninipalities elevated deposit balances

Public fund deposits totaled

$268.5 mi lion or 33.6 of

tota deposits at December

31 2009 At December 31

2008 pubIc fund deposits

represented 28.9% of tota

deposits with balance of

$225.8 million

Borrowings Short term

borrowings increased $2.2

milton 2009 to $11.9

million at December 31

2009 from $9.8 million at

December 31 2008 Short

term borrowings are used to

manage liquidity on daily

or otherwise short term basis The short term borrowings

at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively was

solely corrprsed of repurchase agreements Dvernight

repurchase agreement balances are monitored daily for

sufficient collateralization

Long-term borrow ngs increased $11.6 million to $20.0

million af December 31 2009 compared to $8.4 ml lion

at December 31 2008 At December 31 2009 two

ong term advances were outstanding at FHLB one

tota ing $10.0 million fh rate of 0.9% and matur ty

date of December 2010 and the other totaling $10.0

II on with rate of 0.5% and maturity date of

December 20 2010 At December 31 2008 there was

one long term advance outstanding at FHLB total ng

$8.4 million

Stockholders Equity Tota stockholders equity

increased $29.4 million or 45.0 to $94.9 Ilion at

December 31 2009 from $65.5 Ilion at December

31 2008 The increase in stockholders equity includes

$19.6 million and $1.1 mil ion of preferred stock

Series and Series respect vely issued in August

2009 to the Treasury Departrient See Note 11 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

nformation In addition stockho ders equity reflected

consolidated net income of $7.6 million during 2009

and changes in unrealized osses on available for sale

securities totaling $5.2 million offset by common stock

dividends paid totaling $3.6 II on and preferred stock

dividends paid totaling $0.6 Ilion See Note to

the Consol dated Financial Statements for additional

iifoiniet Un

$491.6
$507.2

$606.4
$589.9

consumer and ther loans In 2009 recoveries of $0.2

million were recognized on loans previously charged off

as copared to 50.3 million in 2008



Loan Portfolio Composition The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio excluding loans

held for sale by type of loan at the dates indicated

December 31

2009 2008 2007

As%of As%of As%of
Balance Category Balance Category Balance Category

fdol/ars in thousands

Real estate

Construction and

land development 78686 13.3% 92029 15.2% 98127 17.0%

Farmland 11352 1.9% 16403 2.7% 23065 4.0%

1-4 family residential 77470 13.1% 79285 13.1% 84640 14.7%

Multifamily 8927 1.5% 15707 2.6% 13061 2.3%

Non-farm non-residential 300673 51.0% 261744 43.0% 236474 41.1%

Total real estate 477108 80.8% 465168 76.6% 455367 79.1%

Agricultural 14017 2.4% 18536 3.0% 16816 2.9%

Commercial and industrial 82348 13.9% 105555 17.4% 81073 14.1%

Consumer and other 17226 2.9% 17926 3.0% 22517 3.9%

Total loans before
__________

unearned income 590699 100.0% 607185 100.0% 575773 100.0%

Less unearned income 797 816 517
Total loans net of

unearned income $589902 $606369 $575256

December 31

2006 2005

As%of As%of

Balance Category Balance Category

fdollars in thousands

Real estate

Construction and

land development 49837 9.9% 67099 13.6%

Farmland 25582 5.0% 24903 5.1%

1-4 family residential 67022 13.2% 78789 16.0%

Multifamily 14702 2.9% 11125 2.3%

Non-farm non-residential 256176 50.5% 223622 45.5%

Total real estate 413319 81.5% 405538 82.5%

Agricultural 16359 3.2% 11490 2.3%

Commercial and industrial 59072 11.6% 54740 11.1%

Consumer and other 18880 3.7% 20078 4.1%

Total loans before unearned income 507630 100.0% 491846 100.0%

Less unearned income 435 264
Total loans net of unearned income $507195 $491582
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The four most significant categories of our loan

portfolio are construction and land development real

estate loans 1-4 family residential loans non-farm

non-residential real estate loans and commercial and

industrial loans

The Companys credit policy dictates specific loan-to-

value and debt service coverage requirements The

Company generally requires maximum loan-to-value

of 85.0% and debt service coverage ratio of 1.25x

to lOx for non-farm non-residential real estate loans

In addition personal guarantees of borrowers are

required as well as applicable hazard title and flood

insurance Loans may have maximum maturity of

five years and maximum amortization of 25 years

The Company may require additional real estate or

non-real estate collateral when deemed appropriate to

secure the loan

The Company generally requires all 1-4 family

residential loans to be underwritten based on the

Fannie Mae guidelines provided through Desktop

Underwriter These guidelines include the evaluation

of risk and eligibility
verification and approval of

conditions credit and liabilities employment and

income assets property and appraisal information It

is required that all borrowers have proper hazard flood

and title insurance prior to loan closing Appraisals

and Desktop Underwriter approvals are good for six

months The Company has an in-house underwriter

review the final package for compliance to these

guidelines

The Company generally requires maximum loan-to

value of 75.0% and debt service coverage ratio of

.25x to Ox for construction land development loans

In addition detailed construction cost breakdowns

personal guarantees of borrowers and applicable

hazard title and flood insurance are required Loans

may have maximum maturity of 12 months for

the construction phase and maximum maturity

of 24 months for the sell-out phase The Company

may require additional real estate or non-real estate

collateral when deemed appropriate to secure the

loan

The Company has specific guidelines for the

underwriting of commercial and industrial loans that

is specific for the collateral type and the business

type Commercial and industrial loans are secured by

non-real estate collateral such as equipment inventory

or accounts receivable Each of these collateral types

has maximum loan to value ratios Commercial and

industrial loans have the same debt service coverage ratio

requirements as other loans which is 1.25x to lOx

The Company will allow exceptions to each of the above

policies with appropriate mitigating circumstances and

approvals The Company has defined credit underwriting

process for all loan requests The Company actively

monitors loan concentrations by industry type and will

make adjustments to underwriting standards as deemed

necessary The Company has loan review department

that monitors the performance and credit quality of

loans The Company has special assets department

that manages loans that have become delinquent or have

serious credit issues associated with them

For new loan originations appraisals and evaluations on

all properties shall be valid for period not to exceed

two calendar years from the effective appraisal date for

non-residential properties and one calendar year from

the effective appraisal date for residential properties

However an appraisal may be valid longer if there has

been no material decline in the property condition or

market condition that would negatively affect the banks

collateral position This must be supported with Validity

Check Memorandum

For renewals with or without new money any commercial

appraisal greater than two years or greater than one year

for residential appraisals must be updated with Validity

Check Memorandum Any renewal loan request in which

new money will be disbursed whether commercial or

residential and the appraisal is older than five years new

appraisal must be obtained

The Company does not require new appraisals between

renewals unless the loan becomes impaired and is

considered collateral dependent At this time an appraisal

may be ordered in accordance with the Companys

Allowance for Loan Losses policy

The Company does not mitigate risk using products such

as credit default agreements and/or credit derivatives

These accordingly have no impact on our financial

statements

The Company does not offer loan products with established

loan-funded interest reserves
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Loan Maturities by Type The following table summarizes the scheduled repayments of our loan portfolio at

December 31 2009 Loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft loans are reported as being

due in one year or less Maturities are based on the final contractual payment date and do not reflect the effect of

prepayments and scheduled principal amortization

One Year One Through After

or Less Five Years Five Years Total

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 48386 30233 67 78686
Farmland 8038 1370 1944 11352
1-4 family residential 26479 23465 27526 77470
Multifamily 1991 5611 1325 8927
Non-farm non-residential 167092 126397 7184 300673

Total real estate 251986 187076 38046 477108

Agricultural 7369 3422 3226 14017
Commercial and industrial 48169 34144 35 82348
Consumer and other 10070 7042 114 17226

Total loans before unearned income $317594 $231684 $41421 $590699
Less unearned income 797

Total loans net of unearned income $589902

The following table sets forth the scheduled contractual maturities at December 31 2009 of fixed- and floating-rate

loans excluding non-accrual loans

December 31 2009

Fixed Floating Total

in thousands

One year or less $224963 $77651 $302614
One to five years 229276 2408 231684
Five to 15 years 25122 25122
Over 15 years 16299 16299

Subtotal 495660 80059 575719
Nonaccrual loans 14183

Total loans net of unearned income $495660 $80059 $589902

At December 31 2009 total loans include $273.1 million in loans maturing after December 31 2010 At December

31 2009 fixed rate loans totaled $495.7 million or 84.0% of total loans an increase from 51.0% of total loans for the

same period in 2008 Throughout 2009 Management added floors to floating rate loans primarily tied to prime rate If

the floor is higher than the cUrrent indexed loan rate then the loan is classified as fixed rate loan until such time as

the floor equals the indexed loan rate

40

FIRST GUARANTY BANcSHARES INC



Non-Performing Assets The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our non-performing assets at the

dates indicated

At December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

dollars in thousands

Non-accrual loans

Real estate loans

Construction and land development 2841 $1644 1841 2676 $16376

Farmland 54 182 419 33

1-4 family residential 2814 1445 1819 3202 3548

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 7439 5263 4950 3882 153

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial 830 275 978 267 358

Consumer and other 205 320 279 302 655

Total non-accrual loans 14183 9129 10288 10362 21090

Loans 90 days and greater delinquent

and still accruing

Real estate loans

Construction and land development

Farmland

1-4 family residential 757 185 544 334 248

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial 17

Consumer and other 28

Total loans 90 days and greater

delinquent and still accruing 785 205 547 334 248

Restructured loans 51 121

Total non-performing loans 14968 9334 10835 10747 21459

Real estate owned

Construction and land development
89 84 2217

Farmland
144

1-4 family residential 292 223 170 78 81

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 366 256 119 245 321

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial

Consumer and other

Total real estate owned 658 568 373 2540 546

Total non-performing assets $15626 $9902 $11208 $13287 $22005

Ratios

Non-performing assets to total loans 2.65% 1.63% 1.95% 2.62% 4.48%

Non-performing assets to total assets 1.68% 1.14% 1.39% 1.86% 3.08%
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For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

gross interest income that would have been recorded

had our non-accruing loans been current in accordance

with their original terms was $0.4 million and $0.5

milton respectively Interest income recognized on

such loans for 2009 was $1.1 million

Nonperforming assets totaled $15.6 million or 1.7%

of total assets at December 31 2009 an increase of

$5.7 million from December 31 2008 Management

has not identified additional information on any

loans not already included in impaired loans or the

nonperforming asset total that indicates possible credit

problems that could cause doubt as to the
ability of

borrowers to comply with the loan repayment terms in

the future

Nonaccrual loans increased $5.1 million from

December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 There

were increases in construction and land development

nonaccrual loans 1-4 family nonaccrual loans nonfarm

nonresidential nonaccrual loans and commercial and

industrial nonaccrual loans

During 2009 there was $1.2 million increase in

construction and land development nonaccrual loans

The increase in nonaccrual construction and land

development loans is partially related to one loan for

$522000 secured by subdivision development

consisting of 17 remaining lots and 6.32 acres of

excess land The loan to value is 58.0% and the

property was appraised for $896000 in February

2005 The Company is currently in foreclosure and

Management does not anticipate any loss In addition

there is townhome development in which the

Company has four of the units financed totaling

approximately $600000 This loan had loan to value

of 83.0% In the fourth quarter of 2007 the properties

securing this loan were appraised at $180000 each

The Company asked the borrower to pay the loans

in full but the borrower was unable to do so The

Company has filed suit to repossess the property and

is currently awaiting the foreclosure sale Also included

in nonaccrual construction and land development

loans are two loans which account for significant

portion of the total One is in the amount of $1.7

million which we are the participant of approximately

$800000 The collateral is subdivision development

in neighboring parish and the lead bank has filed

suit to foreclose on the property Since the beginning

of 2009 approximately $1.4 million in construction

and land development nonaccrual loans have been

removed through foreclosures and payoffs

There was $1.4 million increase in 1-4 family

residential nonaccrual loans during 2009 The

increase in nonaccrual 1-4 family residential loans

resulted from loan in the amount of $578000

secured by several rental houses in the Baton Rouge

area The borrower has filed Chapter 11 bankruptcy

and the Company is waiting for plan of repayment to

be filed with the bankruptcy court The Company has

not been able to determine the level of exposure if

any it will experience as result of the bankruptcy of

the borrower The Company is now receiving adequate

protection payments from the bankruptcy court Also

we have added loan in the amount of $800000
which is secured by two townhomes and five lots in

golf course community One of the townhomes was

sold in October 2009 The borrower is continuing to

attempt to liquidate the remaining collateral to pay

down the loan Also included in this category are two

loans in the amounts of $194000 and $120000 that

are properties which were flooded during Hurricane

Katrina The borrowers have received commitments

from the state to assist in funding the rebuilding of the

properties

Non-farm non-residential nonaccrual loans increased

$2.2 million from December 31 2008 to December

31 2009 The increase is primarily from $4.4 million

loan secured by hotel in Hattiesburg Mississippi

We are currently negotiating with the borrower on

possible workout scenario The primary cause of this

loan moving into nonacccrual relates to the borrowers

health which has resulted in poor management as

well as decline in the hotel industry The increase

was partially offset by $2.6 million loan secured by

church and various other real estate properties which

began performing according to its terms therefore was

removed from nonaccrual loans

Non-real estate commercial and industrial nonaccrual

loans increased $0.6 million during 2009 The largest

loan in this category totals $454000 and is unsecured

The borrower is in Chapter 11 bankruptcy and has

reflected net worth in excess of $20.0 million on the

bankruptcy schedules plan is being developed to
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allocate cash from one of the borrowers partnerships

to pay the unsecured creditors Although this loan

is unsecured the Company currently anticipates

receiving 100% payment Another loan in this category

totals $178000 and is secured by dental equipment

We are in the process of obtaining judgment on this

credit There are also some smaller loans included

in this nonaccrual category One is in the amount of

$86000 and the Company is in the process of taking

mortgage on the guarantors home to pay down

portion of the debt and renew the balance

Auowance for Loan Losses The allowance for

loan losses is maintained at level considered sufficient

to absorb potential losses embedded in the loan

portfolio The allowance is increased by the provision

for anticipated loan losses as well as recoveries of

previously charged off loans and is decreased by loan

charge-offs The provision is the necessary charge

to current expense to provide for current loan losses

and to maintain the allowance at an adequate level

commensurate with Managements evaluation of the

risks inherent in the loan portfolio Various factors are

taken into consideration when determining the amount

of the provision and the adequacy of the allowance

These factors include but are not limited to

past due and nonperforming assets

specific internal analysis of loans requiring special

attention

the current level of regulatory classified and

criticized assets and the associated risk factors with

each

changes in underwriting standards or lending

procedures and policies

charge-off and recovery practices

national and local economic and business

conditions

nature and volume of loans

overall portfolio quality

adequacy of loan collateral

quality of loan review system and degree of

oversight by its Board of Directors

competition and legal and regulatory requirements

on borrowers

examinations and review by our internal loan review

department and independent accountants and

examinations of the loan portfolio by federal and

state regulatory agencies

The data collected from all sources in determining

the adequacy of the allowance is evaluated on

regular basis by Management with regard to current

national and local economic trends prior loss history

underlying collateral values credit concentrations and

industry risks An estimate of potential loss on specific

loans is developed in conjunction with an overall risk

evaluation of the total loan portfolio This evaluation is

inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are

susceptible to significant revision as new information

becomes available

The allowance consists of specific general and

unallocated components The specific component

relates to loans that are classified as doubtful

substandard orspecial mention Forsuch loansthatare

also classified as impaired an allowance is established

when the discounted cash flows or collateral value

or observable market price of the impaired loan is

lower than the carrying value of that loan The general

component covers non-classified loans and is based

on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative

factors An unallocated component is maintained

to cover uncertainties that could affect the estimate

of probable losses The unallocated component of

the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision

inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the

methodologies for estimating specific and general

losses in the portfolio

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

In prior years the Company used an internal method

to calculate the allowance for loan losses which

categorized loans by risk rather than by type We do

not have the ability to accurately and efficiently provide

the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan

type for five-year historical period Beginning in 2008

the Company modified the allowance calculation to

segregate loans by category and allocate the allowance

for loan losses accordingly
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The allowance for loan losses calculation considers both qualitative and quantitative risk factors The quantitative

risk factors include but are not limited to past due and nonperforming assets adequacy of collateral changes in

underwriting standings or lending procedures and policies specific internal analysis of loans requiring special attention

and the nature and volume of loans Qualitative risk factors include but are not limited to local and regional business

conditions and other economic factors

The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan type as of December 31 2009

and 2008

At December 31

20082009

Percent of

Allowance loans in each

for Loan category to

Losses total loans

Percent of

Allowance loans in each

for Loan category to

Losses total loans

Commercial and industrial

Consumer and other

Unallocated

Real estate loans

Construction and land development

Farmland

1-4 family residential

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

dollars in thousands

$1176 13.3% 315 15.2%

56 1.9% 39 2.7%

2466 13.1% 1712 13.1%

128 1.5% 227 2.6%

2727 51.0% 2572 43.0%

82 2.4% 92 3.0%

1031 13.9% 1119 17.4%

246 2.9% 355 3.0%

N/A 51 N/A

-$79-19---- i000$6482 100.0%
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The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated

At or For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period $6482 $6193 $6675 $7597 $5910

Charge-offs

Real estate loans

Construction and land development 448 166 386 5008

Farmland 10 123

1-4 family residential 564 260 639 59 2001

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 586 256 1901 208

Commercial and industrial loans 678 561 273 301 1649

Consumer and other 603 360 563 312 512

Total charge-offs 2879 1613 3885 5888 4162

Recoveries

Real estate loans

Construction and land development
779 39

Farmland 14

1-4 family residential 15 10 14 25

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 57 40

Commercial and industrial loans 28 10 148 304 86

Consumer and other 116 189 201 139 137

Total recoveries 161 268 1160 547 228

Net charge-offs 2718 1345 2725 5341 3934

Provision for loan losses 4155 1634 1918 4419 5621

Additional provision from acquisition
325

Balance at end of period $7919 $6482 $6193 $6675 $7597

Ratios

Net loan charge-offs to average loans 0.45% 0.22% 0.50% 1.06% 0.83%

Net loan charge-offs to loans at end

of period 0.46% 0.22% 0.47% 1.05% 0.80%

Allowance for loan losses to loans at

end of period 1.34% 1.07% 1.08% 1.32% 1.55%

Net loan charge-offs to allowance for

loan losses 34.32% 20.75% 44.00% 80.01% 51.78%

Net loan charge-offs to provision

charged to expense 65.42% 82.32% 142.04% 120.86% 69.99%
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Investment Securities Portfolio The securities

portfolio totaled $261.8 million at December 31 2009

and consisted principally of U.S Government agency

securities mortgage-backed obligations asset-backed

securities corporate debt securities mutual funds

or other equity securities and municipal bonds The

portfolio provides us with relatively stable source of

income and provides balance to interest rate and

credit risks as compared to other categories of the

balance sheet

U.S Government Agency also known as Government

Sponsored Enterprises GSEs are privately owned

but federally chartered companies While they enjoy

certain competitive advantages as result of their

government charters their debt obligations are

unsecured and are not direct obligations of the U.S

Government However debt securities issued by

GSEs are considered to be of high credit quality and

the senior debt of GSEs is AAA rated GSEs raise

funds through variety of debt issuance programs

including

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Freddie Mac

Federal National Mortgage Association

Fannie Mae

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB

Federal Farm Credit Bank System FFCB

With the variety of GSE-issued debt securities and

programs available investors may benefit from

unique combination of high credit quality liquidity

pricing transparency and cash flows that can be

customized to closely match their objectives

Mortgage-backed securities MBS represent an

investment in mortgage loans An MBS investor owns

an interest in pool of mortgages which serves

as the underlying assets and source of cash flow

for the security The loans backing the MBS are

issued by national network of lenders consisting

of mortgage bankers savings and loan associations

commercial banks and other lending institutions

MBS are issued by Government National Mortgage

Association GNMA or Ginnie Mae Federal Home

Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC or Freddie MAC

and Federal National Mortgage Association FNMA

or Fannie Mae Mortgage-backed securities typically

carry some of the highest yields of any government or

agency security The secondary market is generally

large and liquid with active trading by dealers and

investors

The risks associated with MBS include interest rate

risk refinancing risk prepayment risk and extension

risk

Asset-backed securities ABS are securities whose

value and income payments are derived from and

collateralized or backed by specified pool of

underlying assets The pool of assets is typically group

of small and illiquid assets that are unable to be sold

individually Pooling the assets allows them to be sold

to general investors process called securitization

and allows the risk of investing in the underlying assets

to be diversified because each security will represent

fraction of the total value of the diverse pool of

underlying assets The pools of underlying assets can

include common payments from credit cards auto

loans and mortgage loans to esoteric cash flows from

aircraft leases royalty payments and movie revenues

As with all fixed-income securities the prices of ABS

fluctuate in response to changing interest rates in the

general economy When interest rates fall prices rise

and vice versa Prices of ABS with floating rates are

much less affected because the index against which

the ABS rate adjusts reflects external interest-rate

changes Some ABS are subject to another type of

interest rate riskthe risk that change in rates may

influence the pace of prepayments of the underlying

loans which in turn affects yields Most revolving

ABS are also subject to early-amortization eventsalso

known as payout events or early calls Another risk is

the risk of default This is most often thought of as

borrowers failure to make timely interest and principal

payments when due but default may result from

borrowers failure to meet other obligations as well

Corporate bonds are fully taxable debt obligations

issued by corporations These bonds fund capital

improvements expansions debt refinancing or

acquisitions that require more capital than would

ordinarily be available from single lender Corporate

bond rates are set according to prevailing interest

rates at the time of the issue the credit rating of the

issuer the length of the maturity and the other terms

of the bond such as call feature Corporate bonds
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have historically been one of the highest yielding of all

taxable debt securities Interest can be paid monthly

quarterly or semLannually There are five main sectors

of corporate bonds industrials banks/finance public

utilities transportation and Yankee and Canadian

bonds

The secondary market for corporate bonds is fairly

liquid Therefore an investor who wishes to sell

corporate bond will often be able to find buyer for the

security at market prices However the market price

of bond might be significantly higher or lower than

its face value due to fluctuations in interest rates and

other price determining factors Other factors include

credit risk market risk even risk call risk make-whole

call risk and inflation risk

Mutual funds are professionally managed type

of collective investment scheme that pools money

from many investors and invests it in stocks bonds

short-term money market instruments and/or other

securities The mutual fund will have fund manager

that trades the pooled money on regular basis

Mutual funds allow investors spread their investment

around widely That makes it much less risky than

investing in one or two stocks

An equity security is share in the capital stock of

company typically common stock although preferred

equity is also form of capital stock The holder of

an equity security is shareholder owning share

or fractional part of the issuer Unlike debt securities

which typically require regular payments interest to

the holder equity securities are not entitled to any

payment In bankruptcy they share only in the residual

interest of the issuer after all obligations have been paid

out to creditors However equity generally entitles the

holder to pro rata portion of control of the company

meaning that holder of majority of the equity is

usually entitled to control the issuer Equity also enjoys

the right to profits and capital gain whereas holders

of debt securities receive only interest and repayment

of principal regardless of how well the issuer performs

financially Furthermore debt securities do not have

voting rights outside of bankruptcy In other words

equity holders are entitled to the upside of the

business and to control the business

Equity securities may include but not be limited

to bank stock bank holding company stock listed

stock savings and loan association stock savings and

loan association holding company stock subsidiary

structured as limited liability company subsidiary

structured as limited partnership limited liability

company and unlisted stock

Equity securities are generally traded on either one of

the listed stock exchanges including NASDAQ or an

over-the-counter market The market value of equity

shares is influence by prevailing economic conditions

such as the companys performance ie earnings

supply and demand and interest rates

municipal bond is bond issued by city or

other local government or their agencies Potential

issuers of municipal bonds include cities counties

redevelopment agencies special-purpose districts

school districts public utility districts publicly owned

airports and seaports and any other governmental

entity or group of governments below the state

level Municipal bonds may be general obligations of

the issuer or secured by specified revenues Interest

income received by holders of municipal bonds is

often exempt from the federal income tax and from

the income tax of the state in which they are issued

although municipal bonds issued for certain purposes

may not be tax exempt

At December 31 2009 $9.1 million or 3.5% of our

securities excluding Federal Home Loan Bank of

Dallas stock were scheduled to mature in less than one

year and securities with maturity dates 10 years and

over totaled 24.5% of the total portfolio The average

maturity of the securities portfolio was 6.3 years

At December 31 2009 securities totaling $249.5

million were classified as available for sale and $12.3

million were classified as held to maturity compared to

$114.4 million classified as available for sale and $24.8

million classified as held to maturity at December 31

2008

During the fourth quarter of 2009 three agency

securities with par value of $10.0 million were

transferred from available for sale to held to maturity

These three securities had fair market value totaling

$9.8 and an average maturity of approximately 14

years The unrealized loss of $224000 was recorded

as component of other comprehensive loss and will

be amortized over the life of the securities or until the

security is called
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Securities classified as available for sale are measured

at fair market value and securities classified as held to

maturity are measured at book value The Company

obtains fair value measurements from an independent

pricing service to value securities classified as

available for sale The fair value measurements

consider observable data that may include dealer

quotes market spreads cash flows market yield

curves prepayment speeds credit information and

the instruments contractual terms and conditions

among other things For more information on securities

and fair market value see Notes and 19 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Total net securities gains were $3.5 million of which

net AFS gains totaled $3.4 million and net HTM gains

totaled $0.1 million at December 31 2009 Securities

classified as available for sale had gross unrealized

gains totaling $6.2 million at December 31 2009

which includes $0.4 million in unrealized gains on

agency securities $104000 in unrealized gains on

mortgage-backed securities $8000 in unrealized

gains on asset-backed securities $5.6 million in

unrealized gains on corporate bonds and $82000

in unrealized gains on mutual funds or other equity

securities Securities classified as available for sale

had gross unrealized losses totaling $2.8 million at

December 31 2009 which includes $1.6 million in

unrealized losses on agency securities $0.8 million in

unrealized losses on corporate bonds and $0.5 million

in unrealized losses on mutual funds or other equity

securities Securities classified as held to maturity for

sale had gross unrealized gains totaling $113000 at

December 31 2009 of which unrealized gains on

agency securities and unrealized gains on mortgage-

backed securities totaled $52000 and $61000

respectively There were no held to maturity securities

with unrealized losses as of December 31 2009

All agency securities have been in loss position for

less than 12 months The majority of the corporate debt

securities and mutual funds or other equity securities

with unrealized losses have been in loss position for

more than 12 months The Company believes that it

will collect all amounts contractually due and has the

intent and the ability to hold these securities until the

fair value is at least equal to the carrying value At

December 31 2008 securities classified as available

for sale had gross unrealized losses totaling $5.7

million Management periodically assesses the quality

of our investment holdings using procedures similar

to those used in assessing the credit risks inherent

in the loan portfolio During the third quarter 2008

Management identified 12 securities that were other-

than-temporarily impaired

At December 31 2009 it is Managements opinion that

we held no investment securities which bear greater

than the normal amount of credit risk as compared

to similar investments and that no securities had an

amortized cost greater than their recoverable value

See Notes and 19 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

Average securities as percentage of average interest-

earning assets were 27.1% for the year December

31 2009 and 17.0% for the year ended December

31 2008 All securities held at December 31 2009

qualified as pledgeable securities except $92.1 million

of debt securities and $6.1 million of equity securities

Securities pledged at December 31 2009 totaled

$154.5 million
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The following tables set forth the composition of our investment securities portfolio excluding Federal Home Loan Bank

of Dallas stock at the dates indicated

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies $140843 382 $1562 $139663

Mortgage-backed obligations 1472 104 1576

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities 87238 5627 776 92089

Mutual funds or other equity securities 6556 83 495 6144

Municipal bonds 10000 10000

Total available for sale securities $246109 $6204 $2833 $249480

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies 10721 52 10773

Mortgage-backed obligations 1628 61 1689

Total held to maturity securities 12349 113 12462

December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies 58389 $132 58521

Mortgage-backed obligations 1701 82 1778

Asset-backed securities 532 439 93

Corporate debt securities 57773 644 5077 53340

Mutual funds or other equity securities 795 26 147 674

Municipal bonds _______-

Total available for sale securities $119190 $884 $5668 $114406

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies 22680 $160 22840

Mortgage-backed obligations 2076 21 2096

Total held to maturity securities 24756 $181 24936
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December 31 2007

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies 92962 26 25 92963

Mortgage-backed obligations 2016 43 23 2036
Asset-backed securities 1340 95 1245

Corporate debt securities 5954 50 214 5790
Mutual funds or other equity securities 3805 22 291 3536

Municipal bonds

Total available for sale securities $106077 $141 $648 $105570

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies 33984 24 $281 33727

Mortgage-backed obligations 2514 35 2479
Total held to maturity securities 36498 $24 $316 36206

During 2009 the evaluation of securities with continuous unrealized losses indicated that there was credit loss

evident on one corporate bond and it was determined that this investment was other-than-temporarily impaired In

addition three asset-backed securities were deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired The Company recorded

other-than-temporary impairment charges on these securities totaling $829000 before tax $547000 after tax for

the year ended December 31 2009 The Company did not recognize any other impairment charges in 2009 other

than those stated above

In 2008 the Company recorded non-cash other-than-temporary impairment OTTI on certain investments

totaling $4611000 The impairment writedown consisted of three preferred stocks of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac

totaling $1991000 and $1010000 respectively debt securities totaling $873000 and asset-backed securities

totaling $753000
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Investment Portfolio Maturities and Yields The composition and maturities of the investment securities

portfolio at December 31 2009 are summarized in the following table Maturities are based on the final contractual

payment dates and do not reflect the impact of prepayments or early redemptions that may occur

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Total held to maturity securities

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds or other equity securities

Municipal bonds

Total available for sale securities

Weighted

Average

Yield

More than One Year

through Five Years

Weighted

Amortized Average

Cost Yield

dollars in thousands

More than Five Years

through Ten Years

Weighted

Average

Yield

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds or other equity securities

Mutual bonds

Total available for sale securities

Weighted

Average

Fair Value Yield

$139663 4.10%

1576 5.34%

92089

6144

10000

$249480

One Year or Less

Amortized

Cost

946

574

1520

171

171

Amortized

Cost

-$

1$

8924 6.88%

$8924 6.88%

3.61%

3.61%

4.79%

4.41%

4.65%

9996 3.27% 94599 4.01%

62129 6.64% 15963 7.00%

$72125 6.17% $110562 4.44%

More than Ten Years Total Securities

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Total held to maturity securities

Weighted

Amortized Average Amortized

Cost Yield Cost

dollars in thousands

$9775 5.30% 10721

883 4.77% 1628

$10658 5.25% 12349

$36248 4.58% $140843

1472 5.34% 1472

222 6.43% 87238

6556 6.78% 6556

10000 1.40% 10000

$54498 4.29% $246109

10773

1689

12462

5.25%

4.52%

5.15%

6.73%

6.78%

1.40%

5.00%
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Deposits The following table sets forth the distribution of our total deposit accounts by account type for the

periods indicated

December 31

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

As of Average As of Average

Balance Total Rate Balance Total Rate

dollars in thousands

Noninterest-bearing demand $131818 16.5% 0.0% $118255 15.2% 0.0%

Interest-bearing demand 188252 23.5% 0.6% 180230 23.1% 1.4%

Savings 40272 5.0% 0.2% 41357 5.3% 0.4%
Time 439404 55.0% 2.8% 440530 56.4% 3.6%

Total deposits $799746 100.0% $780372 100.0%

December 31

2007

Weighted

As of Average

Balance Total Rate

dollars in thousands

Noninterest-bearing demand $120740 16.7% 0.0%

Interest-bearing demand 223142 30.9% 3.4%

Savings 45044 6.2% 0.5%

Time 334168 46.2% 4.6%

Total deposits $723094 100.0%

As of December 31 2009 the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in amounts greater than or equal

to $100000 was approximately $271.2 million The following table sets forth the maturity of those certificates as of

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

dollars in thousands

Due in one year or less $234685 1.71% $163375 2.10% $140052 4.43%
Due after one year through

three years 19930 3.89% 57431 404% 20207 4.39%

Due after three years 16577 4.91% 26944 4.19% 7083 5.14%

Total $271192 2.06% $247750 2.78% $167342 4.46%
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Borrowings The following table sets forth

information concerning balances and interest rates on

all of our shorCterm borrowings at the dates and for

the periods md cated

Outstand ing at year end

Maximum month-end outstanding

Average daily outstanding

Weighted average rate during the year

Average rate at year end

41321

11379

2.16%

0.19%

45766

16655

5.18%

3.50%

At Decembcr 31 2009 long term debt consisted of

two advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank In

November 2009 the Company recorded an original

$10.0 mil ion amortizing one year advance at rate of

0.861 The Company makes monthly principal and

interest payments In December 2009 the Company

rccorded $10.0 II on interest only bullet advance

with one year maturity at rate of 0.480c The

Company makes monthly nterest payments with the

balloon note due December 2010 The outstanding

ba ance on the long term debt was T20.0 million at

December 31 2009

At December 31 2008 the Company had $8.4 mil ion

in long term borrowings that consisted of an amortizing

one year advance from the Federal Home Loan Bank

at rate uf 3.140 The Cuinpdny made munthy

principal and interest payments until th advance

iiatu red in October 2009

During the first quarter of 2009 the Company borrowed

$6.0 rullion on its available line of credit with iF

Morgan Chase at variable interest rate of prime less

100 basis points The Company injected the cash into

the Bank to strengthen its capital This debt was repaid

2009

$780.4
$799.7

$632.9 $626.3

December 31

2008

dollars in thou5ands

9.767

2007

010.401

26312

18233

81%

23%
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Stockholders Equity and Return on Equity

and Assets Stockholders equity provides source

of permanent funding allows for future growth and the

ability to absorb unforeseen adverse developments

At December 31 2009 stockholders equity totaled

$94.9 million compared to $65.5 million at December

31 2008

Information regarding performance and equity ratios

is as follows

Results of Operations for the Years

Ended December 31 2009 and 2008
Net Income Net income for the year ended December

31 2009 was $7.6 million an increase of $2.1 million or

37.8% from $5.5 million for the year ended December

31 2008 Net income available to common shareholders

for the year ended December 31 2009 was $7.0 million

an increase of $1.5 million from the $5.5 million for the

December 31

2009 2008 2007

54

On August 28 2009 the Company entered into Letter

Agreement which includes Securities Purchase

Agreement and Side Letter Agreement together

the Purchase Agreement with the United States

Department of the Treasury Treasury Department

pursuant to which the Company has issued and sold

to the Treasury Department 2069.9 shares of the

Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series par value $1000 per share for

total purchase price of $20.7 million In addition to

the issuance of the Series Stock as part of the

transaction the Company issued to the Treasury

Department warrant to purchase 114.44444 shares of

the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock

Series and immediately following the issuance of the

Series stock the Treasury Department exercised its

rights and acquired 103 of the Series shares through

cashless exercise See Note 11 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information

On July 2009 the Company committed to the

Federal Reserve Bank the FRB and the Louisiana

Office of Financial Institutions the OFl to inject

$10.0 million in capital by September 15 2009 The

issuance of preferred stock to the Treasury Department

satisfied the $10.0 million capital injection commitment

made to the FRB and OFI

The Company anticipates First Guaranty Bank

maintaining well capitalized status as defined by

regulatory standards

year ended December 31 2008 The largest increase in

net income resulted from an increase in securities interest

income due to an increase in volume of securities owned

The second largest increase resulted from $3.8 million

decline in the amount of other-than-temporary impairment

charges recorded on the securities portfolio The 2009

other-than-temporary impairment charge was $0.8

million compared to $4.6 million other-than-temporary

impairment charge in 2008 See Note and Note 19

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information In addition net gains on sales of securities

totaled $2.1 million for the period ended December 31

2009 compared to net losses of $1000 realized during

the same period in 2008 Net interest income increased

by $0.6 million and the provision for loan losses increased

$2.5 million Noninterest expense increased $0.8 million

primarily from increased regulatory assessments but was

offset by reduced legal and marketing expenses

Earnings per common share for the year ended December

31 2009 was $1.26 per common share an increase

of 27.0% or $0.27 per common share from $0.99 per

common share for the year ended December 31 2008

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the

largest component of our earnings It is calculated by

subtracting the cost of interest-bearing liabilities from the

income earned on interest-earning assets and represents

the earnings from our primary business of gathering

deposits and making loans and investments Our long

term objective is to manage this income to provide the

Return on average assets 0.80% 0.69% 1.30%

Return on average common equity 10.84% 8.13% 15.37%
Dividend payout ratio 50.82% 64.53% 35.85%
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largest possible amount of income while balancing

interest rate credit and liquidity risks

financial insttutions asset and liability structure

is substantially different from that of an industrial

company in that virtually all assets and liabilities

are monetary in nature Accordingly changes in

interest rates which are generally impacted by inflation

rates may have significant impact on financial

institutions performance The impact of interest rate

changes depends on the sensitivity to change of our

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

The effects of the changing interest rate environment

in recent years and our interest sensitivity position are

discussed below

Net interest income in 2009 was $32.3 million an

increase of $0.6 million or 1.8% when compared to

$31.8 million in 2008 Although the net interest margin

declined from 2008 to 2009 increased volumes in

interest-earning assets offset the decline in margins

therefore increasing net interest income Loans are

our largest interest-earning asset and 53.7% of our

total loans are floating rate loans which are primarily

tied to the prime lending rate After the prime rate

dropped 400 basis points in 2008 Management began

adding floors to floating rate loans Loans which have

floors greater than the rate due under the variable rate

provision are considered fixed rate loans until such

time that the floors equals the rate due under the

variable rate provision The loan floors were the first

step to managing the net interest income Although the

yield on securities also declined from 2008 to 2009

interest income was enhanced by increased volumes

of securities Managements

next focus was on the cost

of funds The cost of our

interest-bearing ha bihities was

positively impacted by the

reduction all cost of funds paid

on interest-bearing liabilities

As of December 31 2009

time deposits represented

54.9% of our total deposits

which is decrease from

56.5% of total deposits at

December 31 2008

Comparing 2009 to 2008

the average yield on interest-

earning assets decreased by

110 basis points and the average rate paid on interest-

bearing liabilities decreased by 60 basis points The net

yield on interest-earning assets was 3.6% for the year

ended December 31 2009 compared to 4.2% for 2008

During the first quarter of 2009 the Company borrowed

$6.0 million on its available line of credit at variable

interest rate of prime less 100 basis points This debt was

paid in its entirety during 2009

The net interest income margin shown below in the

average balance sheet is calculated by dividing net

interest income by average interest-earning assets and is

measure of the efficiency of the earnings from balance

sheet activities It is affected by changes in the difference

between interest on interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities and the percentage of interest-earning

assets funded by interest-bearing liabilities leverage

The leverage for the year ending December 31 2009 and

2008 was 82.5% and 80.3% respectively

The following tables set forth average balance sheets

average yields and costs and certain other information

for the periods indicated No tax-equivalent yield

adjustments were made as the effect thereof was not

material All average balances are daily average balances

Non-accrual loans were included in the computation

of average balances but have been reflected in the

table as loans carrying zero yield The yields set forth

below include the effect of deferred fees discounts and

premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest

income or expense

$31.8 $32.3
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Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Average Yield Average Yield Average Yield

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

dollars in thousands

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Interest-earning

deposits with banks 35800 388 1.1% 5725 224 3.9% 1977 87 4.4%
Securities

including FHLB stock 245952 11085 4.5% 127586 6594 5.2% 152990 8381 5.5%
Federal funds sold 24662 34 0.1% 17247 392 2.3% 8083 400 4.9%
Loans held for sale 135 5.1% 681 45 6.6% 5216 142 2.7%
Loans net of unearned

income 599609 35677 6.0% 600854 40406 6.7% 543946 46470 8.5%
Total interest-

earning assets 906158 47191 5.2% 752093 47661 6.3% 712212 55480 7.8%

Noninterest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks 17775 22468 19569
Premises and

equipment net 16175 15960 14812
Other assets 8448

_______ 6503
_______

4644
_______

Total $948556 $47191 $797024 $47661 $751237 $55480

Liabilities and

Stockholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits $203467 1179 0.6% $197822 2798 1.4% $196805 6688 3.4%

Savings deposits 41747 98 0.2% 43631 193 0.4% 42564 228 0.5%
Time deposits 479255 13310 2.8% 346282 12432 3.6% 297193 13673 4.6%

Borrowings 22907 257 1.1% 16287 458 2.8% 23450 1345 5.7%
Total interest-bearing

liabilities 747376 14844 2.0% 604022 15881 2.6% 560012 21934 3.9%

Noninterest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits 117805 119379 121894
Other 6240 _______ 5854 ______ 5767 _______

Total liabilities 871421 14844 729255 15881 687673 21934
Stockholders equity 77135 67769 63564

Total $948556 14844 $797024 15881 $751237 21934
Net interest income $32347 $31780 $33546
Net interest rate spread 3.2% 3.7% 3.9%
Net interest-earning assets $158782 $148071 $152200
Net interest margin 3.6% 4.2% 4.7%

Average interest-earning

assets to interest-

bearing liabilities 121.2% 124.5% 127.2%

Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities

Net
interest-earning assets represents total interest-earning assets lass total

interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

HRST GL.JARANTY BANCOHAPrO INC
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Rate/Volume Analysis The following table

presents the dollar amount of changes in interest

income and interest expense for major components of

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing ha bilities

for the periods indicated The table distinguishes

between changes attributable to rate change

in rate multiplied by the prior periods volume ii

changes attributable to volume changes in volume

multiplied by the prior periods rate iii mixed

changes changes that are not attributable to either

rate of volume and iv total increase decrease the

sum of the previous columns

and land development $0.6 million were commercial real

estate and approximately $0.6 million were residential

properties In 2009 recoveries of $0.2 million were

recognized on loans previously charged off as compared

to $0.3 million in 2008 Of the loan charge-offs during

2008 approximately $0.7 million were loans secured by

real estate of which $0.3 million were commercial real

estate and approximately $0.4 million were residential

properties The allowance for loan losses at December

31 2009 was $7.9 million compared to $6.5 million

at December 31 2008 and was 1.34% and 1.07%

of total loans respectively Management believes that

Years Ended December 31

2009 Compared to 2008

Increase Decrease Due To

Rate Increase/

Volume Rate Volume Decrease

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan

losses was $4.2 million and $1.6 million in 2009 and

2008 respectively The increased 2009 provisions

were attributable to $2.7 million in net loan charge

offs during 2009 compared to $1.3 million in net loan

charge-offs during 2008 Of the loan charge-offs in

2009 approximately $1.6 million were loans secured

by real estate of which $0.4 million were construction

in thousands

2008 Compared to 2007

Increase Decrease Due To

Rate Increase/

Volume Rate Volume Decrease

the current level of the allowance is adequate to cover

losses in the loan portfolio given the current economic

conditions expected net charge-offs and nonperforming

asset levels

Noninterest Income Noni nterest income totaled

$7.1 million in 2009 an increase of $6.1 million when

compared to $1.1 million in 2008 Service charges

commissions and fees totaled $4.1 million and $4.0

57

$1177 162 851 164

Interest earned on

Interest-bearing deposits

with banks

Securities including

FHLB stock 6118 844 783
Federal funds sold 169 368 159
Loans held for sale 36 10
Loans net of unearned

income 84 4655 10

165 10 18 137

1392
453

123

4862

474

216
204

7344 6039 1775

79

245

178

Total interest

income

Interest paid On

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Borrowings

Total interest expense

Change in net

interest income

1787

97

4491

358
38

4729

470

1619
95

878

201
1037

9892 1034 6064

80 1652 47
91

4774 2816 1080
186 275 112

5032 4834 1235

3965 10388 1396 7819

$2312 $1205 540 567

32 3904 18 3890

40 35
2258 3003 496 1241

411 685 209 887

1885 7632 306 6053

$2080 2756 $1090 $1766

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES Nc



75 Guaranteed Great Years

million for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively Net securities gain were $2.1

million in 2009 compared to $1000 in net securities

losses in 2008 Other-than-temporary impairment

charges totaling $0.8 million were taken on securities

in 2009 compared to charge of $4.6 million in 2008

See Note and Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information Net gains on

sale of loans were $422000 in 2009 and $210000 in

2008 Other noninterest income decreased $148000
to $1.3 million in 2009 from $1.5 million in 2008

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense totaled

$24.0 million in 2009 and $23.2 million in 2008

Salaries and benefits remained relatively flat at $10.8

million in 2009 compared to $10.7 million in 2008
At December 31 2009 248 employees represented

230 full-time equivalent staff members as compared

to 224.5 full-time equivalent staff members in 2008

Occupancy and equipment expense totaled $2.9

million in 2009 and 2008 respectively Regulatory

assessment expense totaled $2.0 million in 2009

compared to $0.8 million in 2008 During the second

quarter of 2009 special assessment was imposed on

all financial institutions The 2009 special assessment

for the Company totaled $444000 The net cost

of other real estate and repossessions increased

$150000 in 2009 to $399000 when compared to

$249000 in 2008 Other noninterest expense totaled

$7.9 million in 2009 decrease of $0.7 million or

8.1% when compared to $8.6 million in 2008

The following is summary of the significant

components of other noninterest expense

Total noninterest expense includes expenses paid to

related parties Related parties include the Companys

executive officers directors and certain business

organizations and individuals with which such persons

are associated During the years ended 2008 and

2009 the Company paid approximately $2.1 million

and $2.2 million respectively for goods and services

from related parties See Note 14 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes

for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

was $3.7 million and $2.5 million respectively The

increased provision for income taxes in 2009 resulted

from higher income recognized during 2009 when

compared to 2008 which resulted from various

tax credit taken The Companys effective tax rate

amounted to 32.9% and 30.9% during 2009 and

2008 respectively The difference between the

effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate primarily

relates to variances in items that are non-taxable or

non-deductible and various tax credits

Years Ended December 31

Other noninterest expense

Legal and professional fees

Operating supplies

Marketing and public relations

Data processing

Travel and lodging

Taxes sales and capital

Telephone

Amortization of core deposit intangibles

Other

Total other expense

2009 2008

in thousands

2007

58

$1254 $1496 $1610
537 572 615

809 1131 842

1067 1063 955

398 416 439

529 571 628

192 185 211

291 311 203

2839 2864 2826
$7916 $8609 $8329
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Results of Operations for the Years

Ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Net Income Net income for the year ended

December 31 2008 was $5.5 million decrease of

$4.3 million or 43.6% from $9.8 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 The largest decrease

in net income resulted from $4.6 million other-

than-temporary impairment charge recorded on the

securities portfolio in the third quarter of 2008

resulting in $3.0 million net of tax decrease in net

income See Note and Note 19 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information Net

interest income decreased by $1.8 million due to

market pressure placed on our net interest margin

with the decline in market interest rates In addition

noninterest expense increased due to additional costs

related to enhancement of the internal audit and

control process costs associated with education and

training of existing and new personnel and the addition

of staff

Earnings per share for the year ended December 31

2008 was $0.99 per share decrease of 43.6% or

$0.77 per share from $1.76 per share for the year

ended December31 2007

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the

largest component of our earnings It is calculated by

subtracting the cost of interest-bearing liabilities from

the income earned on interest-earning assets and

represents the earnings from our primary business of

gathering deposits and making loans and investments

Our long-term objective is to manage this income to

provide the largest possible amount of income while

balancing interest rate credit and liquidity risks

financial institutions asset and liability structure

is substantially different from that of an industrial

company in that virtually all assets and liabilities

are monetary in nature Accordingly changes in

interest rates which are generally impacted by inflation

rates may have significant impact on financial

institutions performance The impact of interest rate

changes depends on the sensitivity to change of our

interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

The effects of the changing interest rate environment

in recent years and our interest sensitivity position are

discussed below

Net interest income in 2008 was $31.8 million

decrease of $1.8 million or 5.3% when compared to

$33.6 million in 2007 The decrease in net interest

income reflected decrease in net interest spread

and net interest margin as the yield on our interest-

earning assets decreased more than the cost of

our interest-bearing liabilities Loans are our largest

interest-earning asset and 47.4% of our total loans are

floating rate loans which are primarily tied to the prime

lending rate During 2008 the prime lending rate

decreased 400 basis points which adversely impacted

the yield on our interest-earning assets The cost of our

interest-bearing liabilities was adversely impacted by

the $106.4 million increase in time deposits which is

currently our most costly interest-bearing liability As of

December 31 2008 time deposits represented 56.5%

of our total deposits which is an increase from 46.2%

of total deposits at December 31 2007

Comparing 2008 to 2007 the average yield on

interest-earning assets decreased by 150 basis points

and the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities

decreased by 130 basis points The net yield on

interest-earning assets was 4.2% for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to 4.7% for 2007

The net interest income margin in the average balance

sheet is calculated by dividing net interest income by

average interest-earning assets and is measure of the

efficiency of the earnings from balance sheet activities

It is affected by changes in the difference between

interest on interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities and the percentage of interest-earning assets

funded by interest-bearing liabilities leverage The

leverage for the year ending December 31 2008 and

2007 was 80.3% and 78.6% respectively

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan

losses was $1.6 million and $1.9 million in 2008 and

2007 respectively The decreased 2008 provisions

were attributable to $1.3 million in net loan charge

offs during 2008 compared to $2.7 million in net

loan charge-offs during 2007 Of the loan charge

offs in 2008 approximately $0.7 million were loans

secured by real estate of which $0.3 million were

commercial real estate and approximately $0.4 million

were residential properties In 2008 recoveries of $0.3

million were recognized on loans previously charged

off as compared to $1.2 million in 2007 Of the loan

charge-offs during 2007 approximately $3.0 million

59
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were loans secured by real estate of which $2.2 million

were commercial real estate and approximately $0.8

million were residential properties The allowance

for loan losses at December 31 2008 was $6.5

million compared to $6.2 million at December 31
2007 and was 1.07% and 1.08% of total loans

respectively Management believes that the current

level of the allowance is adequate to cover losses in the

loan portfolio given the current economic conditions

expected net charge-offs and nonperforming asset

levels

Noninterest Income Noni nterest income totaled

$1.1 million in 2008 decrease of $3.6 million when

compared to $4.7 million in 2007 Service charges

commissions and fees totaled $4.0 million and $3.8

million for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively Net securities losses were $1000
in 2008 compared to $478000 in 2007 Other-than-

temporary impairment charges totaling $4.6 million

were taken on securities in 2008 See Note and

Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information Net gains on sale of loans

were $210000 in 2008 and $272000 in 2007

Other noninterest income increased $407000 to $1.5

million in 2008 from $1.1 million in 2007

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense totaled

$23.2 million in 2008 and $21.3 million in 2007

Salaries and benefits increased $1.0 million in 2008

to $10.7 million from $9.7 million in 2007 The

increase in salaries resulted from the additional key

management personnel including an Internal Audit

manager and chief credit officer At December 31

2008 241 employees represented 224.5 full-time

equivalent staff members as compared to 222 full-

time equivalent staff members in 2007 Occupancy

and equipment expense totaled $2.9 million in 2008

and $2.6 million in 2007 Regulatory assessment

expense in 2008 totaled $0.8 million compared

to $381000 in 2007 The net cost of other real

estate and repossessions decreased $147000 in

2008 to $249000 when compared to $396000 in

2007 Other noninterest expense totaled $8.6 million

in 2008 an increase of $281000 or 3.4% when

compared to $8.3 million in 2007

Total noninterest expense includes expenses paid to

related parties Related parties include the Companys

executive officers directors and certain business

organizations and individuals with which such persons

are associated During the years ended 2006 2007

and 2008 the Company paid approximately $2.0

million $2.2 million and $2.1 million respectively for

goods and services from related parties See Note 14

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes

for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

was $2.5 million and $5.2 million respectively The

decreased provision for income taxes in 2008 resulted

from lower income recognized during 2008 when

compared to 2007 which resulted from decreases in

net interest income decreases in noninterest income

and increases in noninterest expense The Companys

effective tax rate amounted to 30.9% and 34.8%

during 2008 and 2007 respectively The difference

between the effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate

primarily relates to variances in items that are non-

taxable or non-deductible and various tax credits

Asset/Liability Management and
Market Risk

Asset/Liability Management Our assetllia bi lity

management ALM process consists of quantifying

analyzing and controlling interest rate risk IRR to

maintain reasonably stable net interest income levels

under various interest rate environments The principal

objective of ALM is to maximize net interest income

while operating within acceptable limits established

for interest rate risk and maintain adequate levels of

liquidity

The majority of our assets and liabilities are monetary

in nature Consequently one of our most significant

forms of market risk is interest rate risk Our assets

consisting primarily of loans secured by real estate

have longer maturities than our liabilities consisting

primarily of deposits As result principal part of

our business strategy is to manage interest rate risk

and reduce the exposure of our net interest income

to changes in market interest rates Accordingly our

Board of Directors has established an Asset/Liability

Committee which is responsible for evaluating the

interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities

for determining the level of risk that is appropriate given

our business strategy operating environment capital

F1051 GUARANTY BANC5HARES INC
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liquidity and performance objectives and for managing

this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the

Board of Directors Senior Management monitors the

level of interest rate risk on regular basis and the

Asset/Liability Committee which consists of executive

Management and other bank personnel operating

under policy adopted by the Board of Directors

meets as needed to review our asset/liability policies

and interest rate risk position

The interest spread and liability funding discussed

below are directly related to changes in asset and

liability mixes volumes maturities and repricing

opportunities for interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities Interest-sensitive assets and liabilities

are those which are subject to being repriced in the

near term including both floating or adjustable rate

instruments and instruments approaching maturity

The interest sensitivity gap is the difference between

total interest-sensitive assets and total interest-sensitive

liabilities Interest rates on our various asset and liability

categories do not respond uniformly to changing

market conditions Interest rate risk is the degree to

which interest rate fluctuations in the marketplace can

affect net interest income

To maximize our margin we attempt to be somewhat

more asset sensitive during periods of rising rates and

more liability sensitive during periods of falling rates

The need for interest sensitivity gap Management is

most critical in times of rapid changes in overall interest

rates We generally seek to limit our exposure to interest

rate fluctuations by maintaining relatively balanced

mix of rate sensitive assets and liabilities on one-year

time horizon The mix is relatively difficult to manage

Because of the significant impact on net interest

margin from mismatches in repricing opportunities the

asset-liability mix is monitored periodically depending

upon Managements assessment of current business

conditions and the interest rate outlook Exposure to

interest rate fluctuations is maintained within prudent

levels by the use of varying investment strategies

We monitor interest rate risk using an interest sensitivity

analysis set forth on the following table This analysis

which we prepare monthly reflects the maturity and

repricing characteristics of assets and liabilities over

various time periods The gap indicates whether more

assets or liabilities are subject to repricing over

given time period The interest sensitivity analysis at

December 31 2009 shown below reflects liability

sensitive position with negative cumulative gap on

one-year basis

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC
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Interest Sensitivity at December 31 2009

Over

__________ _____________
One Year Total

Earning Assets

Loans including loans held for sale $273105 $589902
Securities including FHLB stock 252746 264376
Federal funds sold 13279
Other earning assets

__________ __________ __________ 14
Total earning assets

_________ _________ _________ 525851 $867571

Source of Funds

Interest-bearing accounts

Demand deposits 138774 188252
Savings deposits 10067 40272
Time deposits 349719 439404
Short-term borrowings 11929 11929
Long-term borrowings 20000 20000

Noninterest-bearing net

_________
167714

Total source of funds
_________ _________ 530489

_________ $867571
Period gap

_________ _________ 188769
_________

Cumulative gap $188769

Cumulative gap as

percent of earning assets

Net Interest Income at Risk Net interest

income Nil at risk measures the risk of decline

in earnings due to changes in interest rates The

table below presents an analysis of our interest rate

risk as measured by the estimated changes in net __________ __________________

interest income resulting from an instantaneous and

sustained parallel shift in the yield curve at December

31 2009 Shifts are measured in 100 basis point

increments 200 through -200 basis points from

base case Base case encompasses key assumptions

for asset/liability mix loan and deposit growth pricing

prepayment speeds deposit decay rates securities

portfolio cash flows and reinvestment strategy and the

market value of certain assets under the various interest

rate scenarios The base case scenario assumes that

the current interest rate environment is held constant

throughout the forecast period the instantaneous

shocks are performed against that yield curve

Three Months Over Three Months Total

Or Less thru 12 Months One Year

dollars in thousands

$118637 $316797

7703 11630

13279

14

126340 341720

198160

3927

13279

14

215380

138774

10067

159239

11929

320009

104629

$104629

190480

20000

210480

84140
$188769

-12.06% -21.76% -21.76%

49478

30205

89685

167714

337082

188769

Estimated Increase

Decrease in Nil

December 31 2009

-17.18%

-7.47%

0.0%

3.41%

6.19%

Change in

Interest

Rates

basis points

-200

-100

Stable

100
200
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The increasing rate scenarios shows higher levels of

net interest ncome while the decreasing scenarios

show higher levels of volatility and subsequently

lower levels of NIL These scenarios are instantaneous

shocks that assume balance sheet Management wil

rror base case Shou the yield curve begin to rise

or fall Management has several strategies available

to max mize earnings opportunities or offset the

negative mpact to earnings For example in fall ng

rate environment deposit pricing strategies could

be adjusted to further sway customer behavioi to

nomcontractual or shorUterm less than 12 mon hs

contractual deposit products which would reset

downwird with the chinges the yield curve and

prevail ng market rates Another opportunity at the

start of such cycle would be reinvesting the secur ties

portfo io cash flows into longer term noncal able

bonds that would lock in higher yields

Even if interest rates change in the designated amounts

tPere an be no assurance that our assets and

liabi ities would perform as anticipated Additionally

cha ige in the U.S Treasury rates in the designated

amounts accompanied by change in the shape of

the U.S Treasury yield curve would cause significantly

fferent changes to NI than indicated above Strategic

management of our balance sheet and earnings

wou be adjusted to accommodate these movements

As with any method of measuring RR certain

shortcomings are inherent in the methods of analysis

presented above For example although certain assets

and abilities may have similar maturities or periods to

repricing they may react

in different degrees to

charges in market interest

rates Also the interest

rates on certain types of

assets and liabilit es may

fluctuate in advance of

changes in market interest

rates while interest rates

other types may ag

behind hangs in market

rates so the ability of

many borrowers to service

their debt may decrease

in the event of an interest

rate increase We consider

all of these factors in monitoring its exposure to interest

rate risk

Liquidity id Capital Resources

Liquidity and Capital Resources Liquid ty

refers to the ability or flexibility to manage future cash

flows to meet the needs of depositors and borrowers

and fund operations Ma ntaining appropriate levels of

liquidity allows us to have suffic ent funds available to

meet customer demand for loans withdrawal of deposit

balances and matur ties of deposits and other liabil ties

Liquid assets nclude cash and due from banks

interest earning demand deposits with banks federal

funds sold and available for sale investment securities

Including securities edged to col ateralize public

fund deposits these assets represent 31.8% 22.1

and 20.3% of the total qu ty
base at December

31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectivey In addition

we maintained borrowing availability with the Federal

Home Loan Bank of Dallas or FHLB approximating

$92.9 million and $63.1 million at December 31

2DD9 and December 31 2008 respectively We also

maintain federal funds lines of credit totaling t63.2

Ilion at three other correspondent banks of which

$63.2 million was ava lable at December 31 2009

and $63.2 Ilion was available at December 31

2008 Management believes there is sufficient liquidity

to satisfy current operating needs

Regulatory Capital Risk based capital regulations

adopted by the FDIC require banks to achieve and

maintain specified rat os of capita to risk-we ghted
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assets Similar capital regulations apply to bank holding

companies The risk-based capital rules are designed

to measure Tier capital consisting of common

equity retained earnings and limited amount of

qualifying perpetual preferred stock and trust preferred

securities net of goodwill and other intangible assets

and accumulated other comprehensive income and

total capital in relation to the credit risk of both on- and

off- balance sheet items Under the guidelines one of

its risk weights is applied to the different on balance

sheet items Off-balance sheet items such as loan

commitments are also subject to risk weighting All

bank holding companies and banks must maintain

minimum total capital to total risk weighted assets ratio

of 8.00% at least half of which must be in the form

of core or Tier capital These guidelines also specify

that bank holding companies that are experiencing

internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected

to maintain capital positions substantially above the

minimum supervisory levels

At December 31 2009 we satisfied the minimum

regulatory capital requirements and were well

capitalized within the meaning of federal regulatory

requirements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had $140.0 million $155.0 million and $105.0

million in letters of credit issued by the FHLB of Dallas

at December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

which was used as collateral for public fund deposits

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant

fixed and determinable contractual obligations and

other funding needs by payment date at December

31 2009 The payment amounts represent those

amounts due to the recipient and do not include any

unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar

carrying amount adjustments

At of December 31 2009 our contractual obligations

were as follows

Operating leases

Time deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Total

11

349719

11929

20000

$381659

106

439404

11929

20000

$471439

One Year

or Less

Payments Due by Period

One Through

Three Years

Over Three

Years

in thousands

Total

21

50529

74

39156

$50550 $39230
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Impact of Inflation and Changing

Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related

financial data presented herein have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles which generally require the measurement

of financial position and operating results in terms

of historical dollars without considering changes in

relative purchasing power over time due to inflation

Unlike most industrial companies the majority of

the Companys assets and liabilities are monetary in

nature As result interest rates generally have more

significant impact on the Companys performance

than does the effect of inflation Although fluctuations

in interest rates are neither completely predictable

or controllable the Company regularly monitors its

interest rate position and oversees its financial risk

Management by establishing policies and operating

limits see AssetlLiability Management and Market

Risk section Interest rates do not necessarily move

in the same direction or in the same magnitude as

the prices of goods and services since such prices

are affected by inflation to larger extent than interest

rates Although not as critical to the banking industry

as to other industries inflationary factors may have

some impact on the Companys growth earnings

total assets and capital levels Management does not

expect inflation to be significant factor in 2010

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures about Market Risk

For discussion on this matter see the Asset/Liability

Management ahd Market Risk section of this analysis
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHAREIS INC



75 Guaranteed Great Years

Castaing

Hussey
Lolan LLC

Certiftcd Public Accountants

Charles Castaing CPA Reared

Roger Hussey CPA Retred

Report Of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Samuel Lolan CPA
Lori Percle CPA

Debbie Taylor CPA
Katherine Armentor CPA

Robin Freyou CPA

Shalee Landiy CPA
Donna Lasseigne CPA

66

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders

equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December31 2009 These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not

required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting

Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and

the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America

44y IUi fl

Castaing Hussey Lolan LLC

New Iberia Louisiana

March 31 2010
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

2009 2008

dollars in thousands except share data

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks 33425 77159

Interest-earning demand deposits with banks 14 20

Federal funds sold 13279 838

Cash and cash equivalents 46718 78017

Interest-earning time deposits with banks 21481

Investment securities

Available for sale at fair value 249480 114406

Held to maturity at cost estimated fair value of

$12462 and $24936 respectively 12349 24756

Investment securities 261829 139162

Federal Home Loan Bank stock at cost 2547 944

Loans held for sale

Loans net of unearned income 589902 606369

Less allowance for loan losses 7919 6482

Net loans 581983 599887

Premises and equipment net 16704 16141

Goodwill 1999 1980

Intangible assets net 1893 2078

Other real estate net 658 568

Accrued interest receivable 5807 4611

Other assets 10709 6364

Total Assets $930847 $871233

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing demand $131818 $118255

Interest-bearing demand 188252 180230

Savings 40272 41357

Time 439404 440530

Total deposits 799746 780372

Short-term borrowings 11929 9767

Accrued interest payable 2519 3033

Long-term borrowings 20000 8355

Other liabilities 1718 4219

Total Liabilities 835912 805746

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock

Series $1000 par value authorized 5000 shares

issued and outstanding 2069.9 shares 19630

Series $1000 par value authorized 5000 shares

issued and outstanding 103 shares 1140

Common stock

$1 par value authorized 100600000 shares

issued and outstanding 5559644 shares 5560 5560

Surplus 26459 26459

Retained earnings 40069 36626

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 2077 3158

Total Stockholders Equity 94935 65487

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $930847 $871233

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
67
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

dollars in thousands except share data

Interest Income

Loans including fees $35677 $40406 $46470
Loans held for sale 45 142

Deposits with other banks 388 224 87

Securities including FHLB stock 11085 6594 8381
Federal funds sold 34 392 400

Total Interest Income 47191 47661 55480

Interest Expense

Demand deposits 1179 2798 6688

Savings deposits 98 193 228

Time deposits 13310 12432 13673

Borrowings 257 458 1345
Total Interest Expense 14844 15881 21934

Net Interest Income 32347 31780 33546

Provision for loan losses 4155 1634 1918

Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses 28192 30146 31628

Noninterest Income

Service charges commissions and fees 4146 3990 3822
Net gains losses on sale of securities 2056 478
Loss on securities impairment 829 4611
Net gains on sale of loans 422 210 272

Other 1341 1489 1082

Total Noninterest Income 7136 1077 4698

Noninterest Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 10752 10653 9662

Occupancy and equipment expense 2891 2903 2573

Regulatory assessment expense 2049 827 381

Net cost of other real estate and repossessions 399 249 396

Other 7916 8609 8329
Total Noninterest Expense 24007 23241 21341

Income Before Income Taxes 11321 7982 14985

Provision for income taxes 3726 2470 5213
Net Income 7595 5512 9772
Preferred Stock Dividends 594

Income Available to Common Shareholders 7001 5512 9772

Per Common Share

Earnings $1.26 $0.99 $1.76

Cash dividends paid $0.64 $0.64 $0.63

Average Common Shares Outstanding 5559644 5559644 5559644

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Balance December 31 2006

as previously reported

Correction of an error

Balance December 31 2006

as restated

Net income

Change in unrealized loss on

available for sale securities

net of reclassification

adjustments and taxes

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.63 per share

Balance December 31 2007

Net income

Change in unrealized loss on

available for sale securities

net of reclassification

adjustments and taxes

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.64 per share

Balance December 31 2008

Preferred stock issued

Net income

Change in unrealized loss on

available for sale securities

net of reclassification

adjustments and taxes

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.64 per share

Preferred stock dividend

amortization and accretion

Balance December 31 2009

$5560 $26459 $28818 905 $59932

416 416

5560 26459 28402 905 59516

9772 9772

3503

5560 26459 34671 335

5512

570 570

10342

2823 2823

2689

3557 3557

5560 26459 36626 3158 65487

20699

7595 7595

5235 5235

12830

3558 3558

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Series Series Accumulated

Preferred Preferred Common Other

Stock Stock Stock Retained Comprehensive

$1000 Par $1000 Par $1 Par Surplus Earnings lncome/Loss

in thousands

Total

3503
66355

5512

19551

79

$19630

1148

$1140

594

$5560 $26459 $40069

523

$2077 $94935
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income 7595 5512 9772

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Provision for loan losses 4155 1634 1918

Depreciation and amortization 1413 1451 1238

Amortization of premium/discount on investments 768 807 1011
Gain Loss on call/sale of securities 2066 478

Gain on sale of assets 385 211 272
Other than temporary impairment charge on securities 829 4611
ORE writedowns and loss on disposition 270 113 180

FHLB stock dividends 32 134
Net decrease in loans held for sale 3959 31090
Change in other assets and liabilities net 8514 3326 779

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 2526 19557 42480

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds from maturities and calls of HTM securities 22187 11740 10493

Proceeds from maturities calls and sales of AFS securities 1281594 756642 627001

Funds invested in AFS securities 1419358 773772 575534
Proceeds from sale of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1900 4175
Funds invested in Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1599 1857 639
Proceeds from maturities of time deposits with banks 35094 2923
Funds invested in time deposits with banks 13613 22216
Net decrease increase in loans 12620 33196 31222
Proceeds from sale of mortgage servicing rights 583

Purchase of premises and equipment 1631 1017 801
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 24

Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 768 443 3103
Cash paid in excess of cash received in acquisition 72 10646
Net Cash Used In Provided By Investing Activities 83914 58482 26513

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net increase in deposits 19382 57194 29355
Net increase decrease in federal funds purchased and

short-term borrowings 2162 634 3817
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 20000 10000

Repayment of long-term borrowings 8355 4738 64802
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 20699

Dividends paid 3799 3557 3503
Net Cash Provided By Used In Financing Activities 50089 58265 35133

Net Decrease Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 31299 19340 33860
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 78017 58677 24817
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 46718 78017 58677

Noncash Activities

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets 1129 751 1118
Cash Paid During The Year

Interest on deposits and borrowed funds 15357 15804 22048
Income taxes 4300 1200 6015

70 See Notes to ConsolIdated Financial Statements
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note

Business and Summaryof Significant

Accounting Policies

Business

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc the Company

is Louisiana corporation On July 27 2007 the

Company became the parent of First Guaranty Bank

The Company owns all of the outstanding shares of

common stock of First Guaranty Bank First Guaranty

Bank the Bank is Louisiana state-chartered

commercial bank that provides diversified range of

financial services to consumers and businesses in

the communities in which it operates These services

include consumer and commercial lending mortgage

loan origination the issuance of credit cards and retail

banking services The Bank has 17 banking offices and

25 automated teller machines ATM5 in northern and

southern Louisiana

Summaryof significant accounting

policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

conform to generally accepted accounting principles

and to predominant accounting practices within the

banking industry The more significant accounting and

reporting policies are as follows

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc the

Company and its wholly owned subsidiary

First Guaranty Bank the Bank All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles requires

Management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities

at the dates of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenue and expense during the

reporting periods Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible

to significant change in the near-term economic

environment and market conditions relate to the

determination of the allowance for loan losses and the

valuation of real estate acquired in connection with

foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans In connection

with the determination of the allowance for loan

losses and real estate owned the Company obtains

independent appraisals for significant properties

Available for sale investment securities are stated at

estimated fair value with the unrealized gains and

losses determined on specific identification basis

Such unrealized gains and losses net of tax are

reported as separate component of stockholders

equity and included in other comprehensive income

loss The Company utilizes an independent third

party as its principal pricing source for determining

fair value For investment securities traded in an active

market fair values are measured on recurring basis

obtained from an independent pricing service and

based on quoted market prices if available If quoted

market prices are not available fair values are based

on quoted market prices of comparable securities

broker quotes or comprehensive interest rate tables

and pricing matrices For investment securities traded

in market that is not active fair value is determined

using unobservable inputs or value drivers and is

generally determined using expected cash flows and

appropriate risk-adjusted discount rates Expected

cash flows are based primarily on the contractual cash

flows of the instrument

Any security that has experienced decline in value

which Management believes is deemed other-than-

temporary is reduced to its estimated fair value by

charge to operations In estimating other-than-

temporary impairment losses Management considers

the length of time and the extent to which the

fair value has been less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and

the intent and ability of the Company to retain its

investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to

allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value Realized

gains and losses on security transactions are computed

using the specific identification method Amortization

of premiums and discounts is included in interest and
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dividend income Discounts and premiums related

to debt securities are amortized using the effective

interest rate method The Company did not have any

derivative financial instruments as of December 31

2009 or 2008

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash

equivalents are defined as cash due from banks

interest-bearing demand deposits with banks and

federal funds sold with maturities of three months or

less

Securities

The Company reviews its financial position liquidity

and future plans in evaluating the criteria for classifying

investment securities At December 31 2009 the

securities porffolio contained two classifications of

securities held to maturity and available for sale At

December 31 2009 $249.5 million were classified as

available for sale and $12.3 million were classified as

held to maturity

Debt securities that Management has the ability

and intent to hold to maturity are classified as

held to maturity and carried at cost adjusted for

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts

using methods approximating the interest method

Securities available for sale are stated at fair value

The unrealized difference if any between amortized

cost and fair value of these securities is excluded from

income and is reported net of deferred taxes as

component of stockholders equity Realized gains

and losses on securities are computed based on the

specific identification method and are reported as

separate component of other income

Management evaluates securities for other-than-

temporary impairment at least quarterly and more

frequently when economic or market conditions

warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value

has been less than cost the financial condition and

near-term prospects of the issuer the recovery of

contractual principal and interest and the intent

and ability of the Company to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any

anticipated recovery in fair value

The Company has required investment in Federal

Home Loan Bank stock that is carried at cost that

approximates fair value This stock must be maintained

by the Company

Loans held for sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in

the secondary market are carried at the lower of

cost or estimated fair value in the aggregate Net

unrealized losses if any are recognized through

valuation allowance by charges to income Loans held

for sale have primarily been fixed rate single-family

residential mortgage loans under contract to be sold

in the secondary market In most cases loans in this

category are sold within 30 days Buyers generally

have recourse to return purchased loan under limited

circumstances Recourse conditions may include

early payment default breach of representations or

warranties and documentation deficiencies

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with the

mortgage servicing rights released Gains or losses on

sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the

differences between the selling price and the carrying

value of the related mortgage loans sold

Loans

Loans are stated at the principal amounts outstanding

net of unearned income and deferred loan fees

In addition to loans issued in the normal course of

business overdrafts on customer deposit accounts

are considered to be loans and reclassified as

such At December 31 2009 and 2008 $116000

and $161000 respectively in overdrafts have

been reclassified to loans Interest income on all

classifications of loans is calculated using the simple

interest method on daily balances of the principal

amount outstanding

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loan when

Management believes after considering economic

and business conditions and collection efforts the

borrowers financial condition is such that reasonable

doubt exists as to the full and timely collection of

principal and interest This evaluation is made for all

loans that are 90 days or more contractually past due

When loan is placed in non-accrual status all interest

previously accrued but not collected is reversed against

current period interest income Income on such loans
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is then recognized only to the extent that cash is

received and where the future collection of interest and

principal is probable Loans are returned to accrual

status when in the judgment of Management all

principal and interest amounts contractually due are

reasonably assured of repayment within reasonable

time frame and when the borrower has demonstrated

payment performance of cash or cash equivalents for

minimum of six months

All loans except mortgage loans are considered

past due if it is past due 30 days Mortgage loans are

considered past due when two consecutive payments

have been missed Loans that are past due 90-120

days and deemed uncollectible are charged off The

loan charge off is reduction of the allowance for loan

losses

Loan fees and costs

Nonrefundable loan origination and commitment fees

and direct costs associated with originating loans are

deferred and recognized over the lives of the related

loans as an adjustment to the loans yield using the

level yield method

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through

provision for loan losses charged to expense Loans

are charged against the allowance for loan losses when

Management believes that the collectability of the

principal is unlikely The allowance which is based

on evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior

loan loss experience is an amount that Management

believes will be adequate to reflect the risks inherent

in the existing loan portfolio and exist at the reporting

date The evaluations take into consideration number

of subjective factors including changes in the nature

and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio

quality review of specific problem loans current

economic conditions that may affect borrowers

ability to pay adequacy of loan collateral and other

relevant factors In addition regulatory agencies as an

integral part of their examination process periodically

review the estimated losses on loans Such agencies

may require additional recognition of losses based on

their judgments about information available to them at

the time of their examination

Although Management uses available information to

recognize losses on loans because of uncertainties

associated with local economic conditions collateral

values and future cash flows on impaired loans it

is reasonably possible that material change could

occur in the allowance for loan losses in the near term

However the amount of the change that is reasonably

possible cannot be estimated

The evaluation of the adequacy of loan collateral is

often based upon estimates and appraisals Because

of changing economic conditions the valuations

determined from such estimates and appraisals may

also change Accordingly the Company may ultimately

incur losses that vary from Managements current

estimates Adjustments to the allowance for loan losses

will be reported in the period such adjustments become

known or can be reasonably estimated All loan losses

are charged to the allowance for loan losses when the

loss actually occurs or when Management believes that

the collectability of the principal is unlikely Recoveries

are credited to the allowance at the time of recovery

The allowance consists of specific general and

unallocated com ponents The specific com ponent

relates to loans that are classified as doubtful

substandard or special mention For such loans that are

also classified as impaired an allowance is established

when the discounted cash flows or collateral value

or observable market price of the impaired loan is

lower than the carrying value of that loan The general

component covers non-classified loans and is based

on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative

factors An unallocated component is maintained to

cover uncertainties that could affect Managements

estimate of probable losses The unallocated

component of the allowance reflects the margin of

imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions

used in the methodologies for estimating specific and

general losses in the portfolio

loan is considered impaired when based on

current information and events it is probable that

the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled

payments of principal or interest when due according

to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Factors considered by Management in determining

impairment include payment status collateral value

and the probability of collecting scheduled principal

and interest payments when due Loans that experience

73
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insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls

generally are not classified as impaired Management

determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into

consideration all of the circumstances surrounding

the loan and the borrower including the length of the

delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior

payment record and the amount of the shortfall in

relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment

is measured on loan-by-loan basis for commercial

and construction loans by either the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loans

effective interest rate the loans obtainable market

price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is

collateral dependent

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans

are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly

individual consumer and residential loans are not

separately identified for impairment disclosures

unless such loans are the subject of restructuring

agreement

GoodwiU and Intangible assets

Intangible assets are comprised of goodwill and

core deposit intangibles Goodwill is accounted for

in accordance with FASB ASC 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other SFAS No 142 Under FASB

ASC 350 goodwill and intangible assets deemed to

have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are

subject to annual impairment tests in accordance

with the provision of FASB ASC 350 The Companys

goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis

or more often if events or circumstances indicate

that there may be impairment Adverse changes in

the economic environment declining operations or

other factors could result in decline in the implied

fair value of goodwill If the implied fair value is less

than the carrying amount loss would be recognized

in other non-interest expense to reduce the carrying

amount to implied fair value of goodwill goodwill

impairment test includes two steps Step one used to

identify potential impairment compares the estimated

fair value of reporting unit with its carrying amount

including goodwill If the estimated fair value of

reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount goodwill

of the reporting unit is considered not impaired If

the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its

estimated fair value the second step of the goodwill

impairment test is performed to measure the amount

of impairment loss if any Step two of the goodwill

impairment test compares the implied estimated fair

value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying

amount of that goodwill If the carrying amount of

goodwill for that reporting unit exceeds the implied

fair value of that units goodwill an impairment loss

is recognized in an amount equal to that excess The

Company did not record goodwill impairment charges

in 2009 or 2008

Identifiable intangible assets are acquired assets that

lack physical substance but can be distinguished

from goodwill because of contractual or legal rights

or because the assets are capable of being sold or

exchanged either on their own on in combination

with related contract asset or liability The Companys

intangible assets primarily relate to core deposits

These core deposit intangibles are amortized on

straight-line basis over terms ranging from seven to

15 years Management periodically evaluates whether

events or circumstances have occurred that would

result in impairment of value

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed

for financial reporting purposes using the straight-

line method over the estimated useful lives of the

respective assets as follows

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are

capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful

lives Repairs maintenance and minor improvements

are charged to operating expense as incurred Gains

or losses on disposition if any are recorded in the

Statements of Income

Other real estate

Other real estate includes properties acquired

through foreclosure or acceptance of deeds in lieu

of foreclosure These properties are recorded at the

lower of the recorded investment in the property or its

fair value less the estimated cost of disposition Any

valuation adjustments required prior to foreclosure are

charged to the allowance for loan losses Subsequent

to foreclosure losses on the periodic revaluation of

Buildings and improvements

Equipment fixtures and automobiles

10-40 years

3-10 years
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the property are charged to current period earnings

as other real estate expense Costs of operating and

maintaining the properties are charged to other real

estate expense as incurred Any subsequent gains

or losses on dispositions are credited or charged to

income in the period of disposition

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The Company accounts for its guarantees in accordance

with the provisions of ASC Topic 460 formerly Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB Interpretation

No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure

Requirements for Guarantees In the ordinary

course of business the Company has entered into

commitments to extend credit including commitments

under credit card arrangements commitments to

fund commercial real estate construction and land

development loans secured by real estate and

performance standby letters of credit Such financial

instruments are recorded when they are funded

Income taxes

The Company and all subsidiaries file consolidated

federal income tax return on calendar year basis In

lieu of Louisiana state income tax the Bank is subject

to the Louisiana bank shares tax which is included in

noninterest expense in the Companys consolidated

financial statements With few exceptions the

Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state or

local income tax examinations for years before 2006

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

basis Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which the deferred tax assets

or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized

Valuation allowances are established when necessary

to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected

to be utilized

Comprehensive income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized

revenue expenses gains and losses be included in

net income Although certain changes in assets and

liabilities such as unrealized gains and losses on

available for sale securities are reported as separate

component of the equity section of the balance sheet

such items along with net income are components

of comprehensive income The components of

other comprehensive income and related tax effects

are presented in the Statements of Changes in

Stockholders Equity and Note 17 of the Consolidated

Notes to the Financial Statements

Earnings per common share

Earnings per share represents income available to

common shareholders divided by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the

period No convertible shares or other agreements to

issue common stock are outstanding

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales

when control over the assets has been surrendered

Control over transferred assets is deemed to be

surrendered when the assets have been isolated

from the Company ii the transferee obtains the

right free of conditions that constrain it from taking

advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets and iii the Company does not

maintain effective control over the transferred assets

through an agreement to repurchase them before their

maturity

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB issued an update to ASC Topic

105 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Statement No 168 The FASB Accounting Standards

Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles replacement of FASB

Statement No 162 ASC 105 states that the FASB

Accounting Standards Codification Codification will

become the source of authoritative nongovernmental

U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles U.S

GAAP The Codification does not change current

U.S GAAP but is intended to simplify user access

to all authoritative U.S GAAP by providing all the

authoritative literature related to particular topic in

one place All existing accounting standard documents

will be superseded and all other accounting literature

not included in the Codification will be considered

nonauthoritative The Codification is effective for interim

and annual periods ending after September 15 2009
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The Codification became effective for the Company

during its interim period ending September 30 2009

and did not have an impact on its financial condition

or results of operations

On June 12 2009 the FASB issued updates to ASC

Topic 860 Transfers and Servicing SFAS No 166

Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and

FASB ASC 810 SFAS No.167 Amendments to

FASB Interpretation No 46R which change the

way entities account for securitizations and special-

purpose entities

The update to ASC Topic 860 will require more

information about transfers of financial assets

including securitization transactions and where

companies have continuing exposure to the risks

related to transferred financial assets The update also

eliminates the concept of qualifying special-purpose

entity changes the requirements for derecognizing

financial assets and requires additional disclosures

The update to FASB ASC Topic 810 changes

how company determines when an entity that is

insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through

voting or similar rights should be consolidated The

determination of whether company is required to

consolidate an entity is based on among other things

an entitys purpose and design and companys ability

to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly

impact the entitys economic performance

The update to both ASC Topic 860 and ASC Topic 810

will be effective as of the beginning of each reporting

entitys first annual reporting period that begins after

November 15 2009 for interim periods within that

first annual reporting period and for interim and

annual reporting periods thereafter Earlier application

is prohibited The recognition and measurement

provisions of ASC Topic 860 shall be applied to

transfers that occur on or after the effective date

Management has not determined the impact adoption

may have on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

In May 2009 the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic

855 Subsequent Events SFAS No 165 Subsequent

Events ASC Topic 855 establishes general standards

of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur

after the balance sheet date but before financial

statements are issued or are available to be issued It

requires entities to disclose the date through which it

has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that

date ASC Topic 855 is effective for interim and annual

periods ending after June 15 2009 ASC Topic 855

was effective for the Company as of June 30 2009

The adoption of ASC Topic 855 did not have material

impact on our financial condition results of operations

or disclosures

In May 2009 FASB issued an update to ASC Topic

855 Subsequent Events with the objective to establish

general standards of accounting for and disclosure

of events that occur after the balance sheet date

but before financial statements are issued or are

available to be issued ASC Topic 855 sets forth

the period after the balance sheet date during which

management of reporting entity should evaluate

events or transactions that may occur for potential

recognition or disclosure in the financial statements

the circumstances under which an entity should

recognize events or transactions occurring after the

balance sheet date in its financial statements and

iii the disclosures that an entity should make about

events or transactions that occurred after the balance

sheet date ASC Topic 855 is effective for interim and

annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009

The adoption of ASC Topic 855 on June 30 2009 did

not have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In April 2009 the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic

820-10-65-4 Transition Related to FASB Staff Position

FAS 157-4 This ASC update affirms that the objective

of fair value when the market for an asset is not active

is the price that would be received to sell the asset

in an orderly transaction includes additional factors

for determining whether there has been significant

decrease in market activity for an asset when the

market is inactive eliminates the presumption that all

transactions are distressed unless proven otherwise

requiring an entity to base its conclusion on the weight

of evidence and requires an entity to disclose change

in valuation technique resulting from application of the

FSP and to quantify its effects if practicable ASC

Topic 820-10-65-4 is effective for interim and annual

periods ending after June 15 2009 with early adoption

permitted for periods ending after March 15 2009
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The Company adopted this ASC in the second quarter

The adoption had no material effect on the results of

operations or financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued an update to ASC Topic

320-10-65-1 Transition Related to FSP FAS 115-2

and FAS 124-2 This ASC update changes existing

guidance for determining whether an impairment is

other-than-temporary to debt securities replaces the

existing requirement that the entitys management

assert it has both the intent and ability to hold an

impaired security until recovery with requirement

that management assert it does not have the intent

to sell the security and it is more likely than not it

will not have to sell the security before recovery of its

cost basis requires that an entity recognize noncredit

losses on held-to-maturity debt securities in other

comprehensive income and amortize the amount

over the remaining life of the security in prospective

manner by offsetting the recorded value of the asset

unless the security is subsequently sold or there are

credit losses requires an entity to present the total

other-than-temporary impairment in the statement of

earnings with an offset for the amount recognized in

other comprehensive income and at adoption requires

an entity to record cumulative-effect adjustment as of

the beginning of the period of adoption to reclassify the

noncredit component of previously recognized other-

than-temporary impairment from retained earnings

to accumulated other comprehensive income if the

entity does not intend to sell the security and it is more

likely than not that the entity will be required to sell

the security before recovery ASC Topic 320-10-65-

is effective for interim and annual periods ending

after June 15 2009 with early adoption permitted for

periods ending after March 15 2009 The Company

adopted this ASC in the second quarter The adoption

had no material effect on the results of operations or

financial position

In April 2009 the FASB issued an update to ASC

Topic 825-10-65-1 Transition Related to FSP FAS

107-1 and APB 28-1.FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1

Under this updated ASC publicly traded company

shall include disclosures about the fair value of its

financial instruments whenever it issues summarized

financial information for interim reporting periods

In addition an entity shall disclose in the body or in

the accompanying notes of its summarized financial

information for interim reporting periods and in its

financial statements for annual reporting periods the

fair value of all financial instruments for which it is

practicable to estimate that value whether recognized

or not recognized in the statement of financial position

FASB ASC 825-10-65-1 is effective for interim periods

ending after June 15 2009 with early adoption

permitted for periods ending after March 15 2009

The Company adopted this ASC in the second quarter

The adoption had no material effect on the results of

operations or financial position

In December 2007 the FASB issued an update to ASC

Topic 805 Business Combinations SFAS No 141 ASC

Topic 805 establishes principles and requirements for

recognition and measurement of assets liabilities and

any noncontrolling interest acquired due to business

combination This update expands the definitions of

business and business combination resulting in

an increased number of transactions or other events

that will qualify as business combinations Under ASC

Topic 805 the entity that acquires the business the

acquirer will record 100% of all assets and liabilities

of the acquired business including goodwill generally

at their fair values As such an acquirer will not be

permitted to recognize the allowance for loan losses of

the acquiree ASC Topic 805 requires the acquirer to

recognize goodwill as of the acquisition date measured

as residual In most business combinations goodwill

will be recognized to the extent that the consideration

transferred plus the fair value of any noncontrolling

interests in the acquiree at the acquisition date

exceeds the fair values of the identifiable net assets

acquired Under ASC Topic 805 acquisition-related

transaction and restructuring costs will be expensed

as incurred rather than treated as part of the cost of

the acquisition and included in the amount recorded

for assets acquired ASC Topic 805 is effective for

fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The

impact on the Companys financial condition or results

of operations is dependent on the extent of future

business combinations

Rec1assftcatiorts

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior

year financial statements in order to conform to the

classification adopted for reporting in 2009
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Note

Correction of an Error

During 2009 the Company discovered errors related

to the calculation of interest expense and prepaid

assets for the years ending 2008 2007 and 2006 As

result the 2008 adjustments include reduction of

$199000 in other assets an increase of $944000 in

other liabilities and reduction of retained earnings

totaling $1143000 The 2007 adjustments include

reduction of other assets totaling $66000 an increase

of $842000 in other liabilities and reduction of

retained earnings totaling $907000 The portion of

the error attributable to years prior to December 31

2007 was restated as decrease to retained earnings

at December 31 2006 of $416000

Net income previously reported for 2008 totaled

$5.7 million compared to restated net income which

totaled $5.5 million net decrease of $0.2 million

Net income previously reported for 2007 totaled $10.3

million compared to restated net income which totaled

$9.8 million net decrease of $0.5 million

Below depicts changes as currently reported restated

compared to information previously reported

Note

Cash and Due from Banks

Certain reserves are required to be maintained at

the Federal Reserve Bank The requirement as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 was $13.7 million

and $14.1 million respectively The Company has

accounts at various correspondent banks excluding

the Federal Reserve Bank which exceeded the FDIC

insured limit of $250000 by $9.0 million at December

31 2009 This balance was held at JPMorgan Chase

the correspondent bank which is used to clear cash

letters

Restated Previously Reported Changes

For the Years Ended For the Years Ended For the Years Ended

6364

871233

4219

805746

36626

65487

5051

807994

2096

741640

34671

66355

6563

871432

3275

804802

37769

66630

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

in thousand except per share data

Other assets 199 66
Total assets 199 66
Other liabilities 944 842
Total liabilities 944 842

Retained earnings 1143 907
Total stockholders equity 1143 907

Interest expense 148 536

Noninterest expense 209 208

Provision for income taxes 121 253
Net income 236 491

Earnings per common share 0.99 1.76 1.03 1.85 0.04 $0.09

5117

808060

1254

740789

35578

67262

15881

23241

2470

5512

21934

21341

5213

9772

15733

23032

2591

5748

21398

21133

5466

10263
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Note

Securities

summary comparison of securities by type at December 31 2009 and 2008 is shown below

Held to maturity

U.S Government

agencies

Mortgage-backed

obligations

Total held to

maturity securities

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government

agencies

Mortgage-backed

obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds or other

equity securities

Municipal bonds

Total available for

sale securities

$140843 382 1562 $139663 58389 $132 58521

1472 104 1576 1701 82 1778

532 439 93

87238 5627 776 92089 57773 644 5077 53340

6556 83 495 6144 795 26 147 674

10000 10000

$246109 $6204 2833 $249480 $119190 $884 $5668 $114406

10721 52 10773 22680 $160 22840

1628 61 2096

12349 113 12462 24756 $181 24936

1689 2076 21
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The scheduled maturities of securities at December 31 2009 by contractual maturity are shown below Expected

maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations

with or without call or prepayment penalties

December 31 2009

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

in thousands

Available for sale

Due in one year or less 8924 9083
Due after one year through five years 72125 76441
Due after five years through 10 years 110562 110415
Over 10 years 54498 53541

Total available for sale securities $246109 $249480

Held to maturity

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years 171 174

Due after five years through 10 years 1520 1597
Over 10 years 10658 10691

Total held to maturity securities 12349 12462

At December 31 2009 and 2008 approximately $154.5 million and $85.4 million respectively in securities were

pledged to secure public fund deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law Gross realized gains were

$2.1 million $4000 and $0 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Gross realized

losses were $61000 $5000 and $478000 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 The tax benefit

provision applicable to these realized net losses/gains amounted to $0.7 million $0 and $163000 respectively

Proceeds from sales of securities classified as available for sale amounted to $22.1 million $0.2 million and $65.2

million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The following is summary of the fair value of securities with gross unrealized losses and an aging of those gross

unrealized losses at December 31 2009

Available for sale

U.S Treasury and U.S

Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds or other

equity securities

Total available for sale securities

Held to maturity

U.S Treasury and U.S

Government agencies

Mortgage-backed obligations

Total held to maturity securities

Less Than 12 Months

Gross

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

$74460 $1562

1874

224

12 Months or More

Gross

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

in thousands

224

Total

Gross

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

$74460 $1562

6609 776

$9776

$9776

At December 31 2009 59 debt securities and 17

equity securities have unrealized losses of $3.1 million

or 3.1% of amortized cost The gross unrealized losses

in the porffolio resulted from increases in market

interest rates illiquidity and declines in net income

and other financial indicators caused by the national

economy in the market and not from deterioration

in the creditworthiness of the issuer The Company

believes that it will collect all amounts contractually

due and has the intent and the ability
to hold these

securities until the fair value is at least equal to the

carrying value The Company had 30 U.S Government

agency securities and nine debt securities that had

gross unrealized losses for less than 12 months The

Company had 20 corporate debt securities and 17

equity securities which have been in continuous

unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer

All securities with unrealized losses greater than

12 months were classified as available for sale All

securities with unrealized losses less than 12 months

were classified as available for sale except $9.8 million

in agency securities These securities with unrealized

losses resulted from increases in interest rates and

illiquidity in the market and not from deterioration in

the creditworthiness of the issuer

During the fourth quarter of 2009 three agency

securities with par value of $10.0 million were

transferred from available for sale to held to maturity

These three securities had fair market value totaling

$9.8 and an average maturity of approximately 14

years The unrealized loss of $224000 was recorded

as component of other comprehensive loss and will

be amortized over the life of the securities or until the

security is called

Irrespective of the classification accounting and

reporting treatment as AFS or HTM securities if any

decline in the market value of security is deemed

to be other-than-temporary then the securitys

carrying value shall be written down to fair value

and the amount of the write down reflected in

earnings Management evaluates securities for other-

55 4735 721

498 3724 493 4222 495

$76832 $1619 $8459 $1214 $85291 $2833

9776 224

9776 224
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than-temporary impairment at least quarterly and

more frequently when economic or market conditions

warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value

has been less than cost ii the financial condition and

near-term prospects of the issuer iii the recovery of

contractual principal and interest and iv the intent

and ability of the Company to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for

any anticipated recovery in fair value In analyzing an

issuers financial condition Management considers

whether the securities are issued by the federal

government or its agencies whether downgrades by

bond rating agencies have occurred and industry

reports

The amount of investment securities issued by

government agencies mortgage-backed and asset-

backed securities with unrealized losses and the

amount of unrealized losses on those investment

securities are primarily the result of market interest

rates and
illiquidity

in the market The company has

the ability and intent to hold these securities until

recovery which may be until maturity

The corporate debt securities consist primarily of

corporate bonds issued by financial institutions

insurance and real estate companies Also included

in corporate debt securities are trust preferred capital

securities many issued by national and global financial

services firms The market values of corporate bonds

have declined over the last several months due to

larger credit spreads on financial sector debt as well

as the real estate markets The Company believes

that the each of the issuers will be able to fulfill the

obligations of these securities The Company has the

ability and intent to hold these securities until they

recover which could be at their maturity dates

Other than the corporate debt securities the Company

attributes the unrealized losses mainly to increases

in market interest rates over the yield available at the

time the underlying securities were purchased and

does not expect to incur loss unless the securities

are sold prior to maturity

Overall market declines particularly in the banking

and financial institutions as well as the real estate

market are result of significant stress throughout

the regional and national economy Securities with

unrealized losses in which the Company has not

already taken an OTTI charge are currently performing

according to their contractual terms Management

has the intent and
ability to hold these securities for

the foreseeable future The fair value is expected to

recover as the securities approach their maturity or

repricing date or if market yields for such investments

decline As result of uncertainties in the market place

affecting companies in the financial services industry

it is at least reasonably possible that change in the

estimate will occur in the near term

Securities that are other-than-temporarily impaired are

evaluated at least quarterly The evaluation includes

performance indications of the underlying assets

in the security loan to collateral value third-party

guarantees current levels of subordination geographic

concentrations industry analysts reports sector credit

ratings volatility of the securities fair value liquidity

leverage and capital ratios the companys ability
to

continue as going concern If the company is in

bankruptcy the status and potential outcome is also

considered

The Company believes that the securities with

unrealized losses reflect impairment that is temporary

and that there are currently no securities with other-

than-temporary impairment

During 2009 the Company recorded an impairment

writedown totaling $829000 The impairment

writedown consisted of one corporate debt security

totaling $243000 issued by Colonial Bank which

had an unrealized loss of $233000 three asset

backed securities totaling $381000 issued by ALESCO

which had unrealized losses of $377000 and two

asset backed securities totaling $205000 issued by

TRAPEZA which had unrealized losses of $200000

During 2008 the Company recorded an impairment

writedown totaling $4611000 The impairment

writedown consisted of three preferred stocks of Fannie

Mae and Freddie Mac totaling $3046000 on cost

basis which had unrealized losses of $1991000

and $1010000 respectively debt securities totaling

$727000 and $240000 issued by Lehman Brothers

and Washington Mutual which had unrealized losses of

$634000 and $239000 respectively The Company

also recorded an impairment writedown on $510000

and $739000 in asset-backed securities issued by
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TRAPEZA and ALESCO CDOs which had unrealized

losses of $344000 and $409000 respectively

At December 31 2009 the Companys exposure to

four investment security issuers exceeded 10.0% of

stockholders equity as follows

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

in thousands

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB 52513 52021

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Freddie Mac 35017 34981

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 48849 48359

Federal Farm Credit Bank FFCB 18230 18050

Total $154609 $153411

Note

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table summarizes the components of the Companys loan portfolio as of December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31

2009 2008

As%of As%of

Balance Category Balance Category

dollars in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 78686 13.3% 92029 15.2%

Farmland 11352 1.9% 16403 2.7%

1-4 family residential 77470 13.1% 79285 13.1%

Multifamily 8927 1.5% 15707 2.6%

Non-farm non-residential 300673 51.0% 261744 43.0%

Total real estate 477108 80.8% 465168 76.6%

Agricultural 14017 2.4% 18536 3.0%

Commercial and industrial 82348 13.9% 105555 17.4%

Consumer and other 17226 2.9% 17926 3.0%

Total loans before unearned income 590699 100.0% 607185 100.0%

Less unearned income 797 816

Total loans net of unearned income $589902 $606369

83

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC



75 Guaranteed Great Years

The following table summarizes fixed and floating rate loans by maturity

December 31 2009

and repricing frequencies as of

December 31 2009

Fixed Floating Total

in thousands

One year or less

One to five years

Five to 15 years

Over 15 years

Subtotal

Nonaccrual loans

Total loans net of unearned income

Balance beginning of year

Additional provision from acquisition

Provision charged to expense

Loans charged off

Recoveries

Balance end of year

$224963

229276

25122

16299

495660

$495660

$77651

2408

$302614

231684

25122

16299

575719

14183

$589902

$6675

325

1918

3885
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The allowance for loan losses is reviewed by

Management on monthly basis and additions thereto

are recorded in order to mzaintain the allowance

at an adequate level In assessing the adequacy

of the allowance Management considers variety

of internal and external factors that might impact

the performance of individual loans These factors

include but are not limited to economic conditions

and their impact upon borrowers ability to repay

loans respective industry trends borrower estimates

and independent appraisals Periodic changes in

these factors impact Managements assessment of

each loan and its overall impact on the adequacy of

the allowance for loan losses

As of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company had loans totaling $14.2 million $9.1 million

and $10.3 million respectively on which the accrual

of interest had been discontinued As of December

31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company had loans past

due 90 days or more and still accruing interest totaling

$0.8 million $205000 and $547000 respectively

The average amount of non-accrual loans in 2009 was

$10.6 million compared to $9.9 million in 2008 Had

these loans performed in accordance with their original

terms the Companys interest income would have

been increased by approximately $0.4 million and $0.5

million for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively Impaired loans at December 31

2009 and 2008 including non-accrual loans amounted

to $33.4 million and $11.4 million respectively The

portion of the allowance for loan losses allocated to

all impaired loans amounted to $2.7 million and $1.4

million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

As of December 31 2009 the Company has no

outstanding commitments to advance additional funds

in connection with impaired loans

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows

80059

$80059

Years Ended December31

2009 2008

in thousands

$6482 $6193

2007

4155

2879
161

$7919

1634

1613
268

$6482

1160

$6193

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC



2009 Annual Report

The following is summary of information pertaining to impaired loans as of December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

Impaired loans without valuation allowance 5853 6084

Impaired loans with valuation allowance 28080 5267

Total impaired loans $33933 $11351

Valuation allowance related to impaired loans 2967 1353

Total nonaccrual loans $14183 9129

Total loans past due 90 days and still accruing 785 205

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Average investment in impaired loans 8979 9027 $7571

Interest income recognized on impaired loans 184 1049 764

Interest income recognized on cash basis on

impaired loans 565 283 182

Note

Premises and Equipment

The major categories comprising premises and equipment at December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

Land 4514 4693

Bank premises
16608 15333

Furniture and equipment 14264 13763

Acquired value 35386 33789

Less accumulated depreciation
18682 17648

Net book value $16704 $16141

Depreciation expense amounted to approximately $1.0 million $1.0 million and $0.9 million for 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively
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Note

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill and intangible

assets in accordance with FASB ASC 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other SFAS No 142 Under FASB

ASC 350 goodwill and intangible assets deemed to

have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are

subject to annual impairment tests in accordance

with the provision of FASB ASC 350 Other intangible

assets continue to be amortized over their useful lives

Goodwill for the year ended December 31 2009 was

$2.0 million and was acquired in the Homestead

acquisition in 2007 No impairment charges were

recognized during 2009

Mortgage servicing rights totaled $136000 at

December 31 2009 and $29000 at December 31
2008

Other intangible assets recorded include core deposit

intangibles which are subject to amortization The

core deposits reflect the value of deposit relationships

including the beneficial rates which arose from

the purchase of other financial institutions and the

purchase of various banking center locations from

one single financial institution The following table

summarizes the Companys purchased accounting

intangible assets subject to amortization

December31

2009 2008

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

in thousands

Core deposit intangibles $7997 $6240 $1757 $7997 $5948 $2049
Mortgage servicing rights 157 21 136 32 29

Total $8154 $6261 $1893 $8029 $5951 $2078
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Amortization expense relating to purchase accounting intangibles totaled $291000 $311000 and $203000 for the

year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The weighted average amortization period of these

assets is 9.3 years Estimated future amortization expense is as follows

For the Years Ended Estimated

December 31 Amortization Expense

in thousands

2010 $218

2011 $218

2012 $216

2013 $185

2014 $185

These estimates do not assume the addition of any new intangible assets that may be acquired in the future nor any

writedowns resulting from impairment

Note

Other Real Estate

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 other real estate net ORE totaled $0.7 million and $0.6 million ORE consisted

of $292000 of 1-4 family residential properties and $366000 non-farm non-residential properties at December 31

2009 At December 31 2008 ORE consisted of $89000 of construction land development and other loans $223000

of 1-4 family residential properties and $256000 of non-farm nonresidential properties

Note

Deposits

The aggregate amount of jumbo time deposits each with minimum denomination of $100000 was approximately

$271.2 million and $247.8 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

At December 31 2009 the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows

December 31 2009

in thousands

Due in one year or less $349719

Due after one year through three years 50529

Due after three years 39156

Total $439404

The table above includes brokered deposits totaling $10.1 million in reciprocal time deposits acquired from the

Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service CDARS At December 31 2008 the Company had $13.0 million in

brokered deposits
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Note 10

Borrowings

Short-term borrowings are summarized as follows

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Total short-term borrowings

2009

December 31

in thousands

2008

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

which are classified as secured borrowings generally

mature daily Interest rates on repurchase agreements

are set by Management and are generally based on

the 91-day Treasury bill rate Repurchase agreement

deposits are fully collateralized and monitored daily

The Companys available lines of credit with

correspondent banks including the Federal Home

Loan Bank totaled $156.1 million at December 31

2009 and $140.4 million at December 31 2008

At December 31 2009 the Company had $142.6

million in blanket lien availability primarily secured

by commercial real estate loans and $110.3 million

in custody status availability primarily secured by

commercial real estate loans and 1-4 family mortgage

loans Total gross availability at the FHLB was $252.9

million at December 31 2009 but was reduced by its

outstanding long-term advance totaling $20.0 million

and letters of credit totaling $140.0 million Net

availability with the FHLB at December 31 2009 was

$92.9 million The Company also had lines available

with other correspondent banks totaling $63.2 million

at December 31 2009

With the exception of the FHLB no other lines were

outstanding with any other correspondent bank at

December 31 2009

The following schedule provides certain information

about the Companys short-term borrowings for the

periods indicated

December 31

$11929

$11929

$9767

$9767

2009 2008

dollars in thousands

2007

Outstanding at year end $11929 9767 $10401

Maximum month-end outstanding 26372 41321 45766

Average daily outstanding 18233 11379 16655

Weighted average rate during the year 0.81% 2.16% 5.18%

Average rate at year end 0.23% 0.19% 3.50%
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At December 31 2009 long-term debt consisted of

two advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank In

November 2009 the Company obtained an original

$10.0 million amortizing one year advance at rate of

0.861% The Company makes monthly principal and

interest payments In December 2009 the Company

obtained $10.0 million interest only advance with

one year maturity at rate of 0.480% The Company

makes monthly interest payments with the balloon

note due in December 2010 The outstanding balance

on the long-term debt was $20.0 million at December

31 2009

At December 31 2008 one long-term advance was

outstanding at the FHLB totaling $8.4 million with

rate of 3.14% and maturity date of October 2009

At December 31 2009 letters of credit issued by

the FHLB totaling $140.0 million were outstanding

and carried as off-balance sheet items all of which

expire in 2010 At December 31 2008 letters of

credit issued by the FHLB totaling $155.0 million were

outstanding and carried as off-balance sheet items all

of which expire in 2009 The letters of credit are solely

used for pledging towards public fund deposits See

Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information

Note 11
Issuance of Preferred Stock

On August 28 2009 the Company entered into Letter

Agreement which includes Securities Purchase

Agreement and Side Letter Agreement together

the Purchase Agreement with the United States

Department of the Treasury Treasury Department

pursuant to which the Company has issued and sold

to the Treasury Department 2069.9 shares of the

Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series par value $1000 per share for

total purchase price of $20.7 million In addition to

the issuance of the Series Stock as part of the

transaction the Company issued to the Treasury

Department warrant to purchase 114.44444 shares of

the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock

Series and immediately following the issuance of the

Series stock the Treasury Department exercised its

rights and acquired 103 of the Series shares through

cashless exercise The newly issued Series Stock

generally non-voting stock pays cumulative dividends

of 5% for five years and rate of 9% dividends per

annum thereafter The newly issued Series Stock

generally non-voting pays cumulative dividends at

rate of 9% per annum Both the Series Stock and

the Series Stock were issued in private placement

Note 12
Minimum Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to various

regulatory capital requirements administered by the

federal and state banking agencies Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain

mandatory and possibly additional discretionary

actions by regulators that if undertaken could have

direct material effect on the Companys financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and

the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action

the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their

assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items

as calculated under regulatory accounting practices

The capital amounts and classification are also subject

to qualitative judgments by the regulators about

components risk weightings and other factors Prompt

corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank

holding companies

Quantitative measures established by regulation to

ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the

Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total

and Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier

capital to average assets Management believes as

of December 31 2009 and 2008 that the Company

and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to

which they were subject

As of December 31 2009 the most recent notification

from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the

regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To

be categorized as well capitalized an institution must

maintain minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based

and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the following

table There are no conditions or events since the

notification that Management believes have changed

the Banks category The Companys and the Banks

actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31

2009 and 2008 are presented in the following table
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Actual

Amount Ratio

Minimum Capital

Requirements

Amount Ratio

dollars in thousands

Minimum

To Be Well

Capitalized Under

Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

Amount Ratio

December 31 2009

Total risk-based capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier leverage capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

December 31 2008

Total risk-based capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier leverage capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Note 13
Dividend Restrictions

The Federal Reserve Bank has stated that generally

bank holding company should not maintain rate

of distributions to shareholders unless its available

net income has been sufficient to
fully fund the

distributions and the prospective rate of earnings

retention appears consistent with the bank holding

companys capital needs asset quality and overall

financial condition As Louisiana corporation the

Company is restricted under the Louisiana corporate

law from paying dividends under certain conditions

The Company is currently required to obtain prior

written approval from the FRB before declaring or

paying any corporate dividend

First Guaranty Bank may not pay dividends or distribute

capital assets if it is in default on any assessment due

to the FDIC First Guaranty Bank is also subject to

regulations that impose minimum regulatory capital and

minimum state law earnings requirements that affect the

amount of cash available for distribution In addition

under the Louisiana Banking Law dividends may not

be paid if it would reduce the unimpaired surplus below

50% of outstanding capital stock in any year

The Bank is restricted under applicable laws in the

payment of dividends to an amount equal to current year

earnings plus undistributed earnings for the immediately

preceding year unless prior permission is received from

the Commissioner of Financial Institutions for the State

of Louisiana Dividends payable by the Bank in 2010

without permission will be limited to 2010 earnings

$96514 1297% $59536 8.00% N/A N/A
91388 12.22% 59834 8.00% 74793 10.00%

88595 11.90% 29768 4.00% N/A N/A
83469 11.16% 29917 4.00% 44876 6.00%

88595 9.58% 36979 4.00% N/A N/A
83469 9.03% 36985 4.00% 46231 5.00%

$71097 10.11% $56242 8.00% N/A N/A
70441 9.87% 56190 8.00% 70237 10.00%

64606 9.19% 28121 4.00% N/A N/A
63950 8.96% 28095 4.00% 42142 6.00%

64606 7.88% 32783 4.00% N/A N/A
63950 7.81% 32754 4.00% 40942 5.00%
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Accordingly at January 2010 $89399000 of the

Companys equity in the net assets of the Bank was

restricted Funds available for loans or advances by

the Bank to the Company amounted to $9139000 In

addition dividends paid by the Bank to the Company

would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause

the Banks capital to be reduced below applicable

minimum capital requirements

Note 14
Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business the Company

has loans deposits and other transactions with its

executive officers directors and certain business

organizations and individuals with which such persons

are associated An analysis of the activity of loans

made to such borrowers during the year ended

December 31 2009 follows

Companys Board of Directors is President Chief

Executive Officer Chairman of the Board of Directors

and holder of 41.8% of the capital stock as of

January 15 2010 approximately $1.4 million $1.3

million and $1.1 million respectively to participate

in the Champion Industries Inc employee medical

benefit plan and approximately $154000 $183000

and $245000 respectively to Sabre Transportation

Inc for travel expenses of the Chairman and other

directors These expenses include but are not limited

to the utilization of an aircraft fuel air crew ramp

fees and other expenses attendant to the Companys

use The Harrah and Reynolds Corporation of which

Mr Reynolds is President and Chief Executive Officer

and sole shareholder has controlling interest in Sabre

Transportation Inc

During the years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company paid approximately $66000 $30000 and

2009

December 31

in thousands

2008

Balance beginning of year

New loans

Repayments

Balance end of year

$22457

16098

15215

$23340

$19120

18947

16610
$22457

Unfunded commitments to the Companys directors

and executive officers totaled $7.7 million and $12.4

million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

At December 31 2009 there were no participations in

loans purchased from affiliated financial institutions

included in the Companys loan portfolio During

2008 there were no participations in loans purchased

from affiliated financial institutions Participations sold

to affiliated financial institutions totaled $2.4 million

and $10.4 million at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively

During the years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company paid approximately $551000 $504000

and $715000 respectively for printing services

and supplies and office furniture and equipment to

Champion Graphic Communications or subsidiary

companies of Champion Industries Inc of which

Mr Marshall Reynolds the Chairman of the

$3000 respectively to subsidiaries of Hood Automotive

Group of which Mr Hood is the President Expenses

include the purchases of new Company vehicles and

services on Company owned vehicles

During the year ended 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company engaged the services of Cashe Lewis

Coudrain and Sandage attorneys-at-law of which Mr

Alton Lewis director of the Company was partner

to represent the Company with certain legal matters

Mr Lewis had 25% ownership interest in the law firm

In October 2009 Mr Lewis joined the Company as the

Chief Executive Officer As of that date Mr Lewis was no

longer partner in the law firm Cashe Lewis Coudrain

and Sandage The fees paid to Cashe Lewis Coudrain

and Sandage for legal services totaled $114000 for the

year period ended September 30 2009 The fees paid

for these legal services totaled $162000 and $178000

for the years ended 2008 and 2007
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Note 15

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has an employee savings plan to which

employees who meet certain service requirements

may defer one to 20% of their base salaries six

percent of which may be matched up to 100% at its

sole discretion Contributions to the savings plan were

$64000 $64000 and $115000 in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

An Employee Stock Ownership Plan ESOP benefits

all eligible employees Full-time employees who have

been credited with at least 1000 hours of service

during 12 consecutive month period and who have

attained age 21 are eligible to participate in the ESOP

The plan document has been approved by the Internal

Revenue Service Contributions to the ESOP are at the

sole discretion of the Company

Voluntary contributions of $100000 to the ESOP

were made in 2009 2008 and 2007 for the purchase

of shares from third parties at market value As of

December 31 2009 the ESOP held 21652 shares

Note 16
Income Taxes

The following is summary of the provision for income taxes included in the Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Current $3705 $5423 $4632

Deferred 67 2848 40
Tax credits 46 105 81
Tax benefits attributable to items charged to goodwill 726

Benefit of operating loss carryforward 24
Total $3726 $2470 $5213
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The difference between income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate and the provision for

income taxes in the financial statements is reconciled as follows

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

dollars in thousands

Statutory tax rate 34.0% 34.3% 34.2%

Federal income taxes at statutory rate $3854 $2739 $5126

Tax credits 46 105 81
Other 82 164 168

Total $3726 $2470 $5213

Deferred taxes are recorded based upon differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and

liabilities and available tax credit carryforwards Temporary differences between the financial statement and tax values

of assets and liabilities give rise to deferred tax assets liabilities The significant components of deferred tax assets

and liabilities at December 31 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 2692 $2204

Other real estate owned 36 45

Impairment writedown on securities 1236 1568

Unrealized loss on available for sale securities 1627

Other 145 91

Gross deferred tax assets 4109 5535

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortization 1238 1018
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities 1070
Other 817 754

Gross deferred tax liabilities 3125 1772
Net deferred tax assets 984 3763

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 there were no net operating loss carry forwards for income tax purposes

The FASB ASC 740-10 Income Taxes FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an

interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes

recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the consolidated financial statements recognition and

measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return The Company does not believe it has any

unrecognized tax benefits included in its consolidated financial statements The Company has not had any settlements

in the current period with taxing authorities nor has it recognized tax benefits as result of lapse of the applicable

statute of limitations
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The Company recognizes interest and penalties

accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits if

applicable in noninterest expense During the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company did not recognize any interest or penalties

in its Consolidated Financial Statements nor has it

recorded an accrued liability for interest or penalty

payments

Note 17

Comprehensive Income

The following is summary of the components of

other comprehensive income as presented in the

Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

and standby and commercial letters of credit is

represented by the contractual notional amount of

those instruments The same credit policies are used

in making commitments and conditional obligations as

it does for on-balance sheet instruments

Unless otherwise noted collateral or other security

is not required to support financial instruments with

credit risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend

to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Commitments

generally have fixed expiration dates or other

termination clauses and may require payment of

December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

2007

Unrealized gain loss on available for sale securities net

Unrealized loss on held to maturity securities net

Reclassification for OTTI losses

Reclassification adjustments for net losses realized net income

Other comprehensive income loss

Income tax provision benefit related to other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income loss net of income taxes

Note 18

Off-Balance Sheet Items

The Company is party to financial instruments with

off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business

to meet the financing needs of its customers and to

reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates

These financial instruments include commitments to

extend credit and standby and commercial letters of

credit Those instruments involve to varying degrees

elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of

the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets The contract or notional amounts of those

instruments reflect the extent of the involvement in

particular classes of financial instruments

The exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the other party to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit

9382 $18889

224
829 4611

_____________

4277

______ 1454

_______
$2823

fee Since commitments may expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not

necessarily represent future cash requirements Each

customers creditworthiness is evaluated on case-

by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if

deemed necessary upon extension of credit is based

on Managements credit evaluation of the counterpart

Collateral requirements vary but may include accounts

receivable inventory property plant and equipment

residential real estate and commercial properties

Stand by and commercial letters of credit are conditional

commitments to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party These guarantees are

primarily issued to support public and private

borrowing arrangements including commercial paper

bond financing and similar transactions The majority

of these guarantees are short-term one year or less

however some guarantees extend for up to three

2056
7931

2696
5235

387

478

865

295
570
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years The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit

is essentially the same as that involved in extending

loan facilities to customers Collateral requirements

are the same as on-balance sheet instruments and

commitments to extend credit

There were no losses incurred on any commitments

in 2009 or 2008

summary of the notional amounts of the financial

instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December

31 2009 and 2008 follows

Level Inputs Unadjusted quoted market prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the reporting entity has the ability to access at the

measurement date

Level Inputs Inputs other than quoted prices

included in Level that are observable for the asset

or liability either directly or indirectly These might

include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in

active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in markets that are not active

2009

December 31

in thousands

2008

Financial instruments whose contract

amounts represent credit risk

Commitments to extend credit

Standby letters of credit

$51132

7091

$90938

7647

Note 19
Fair Value Measurements

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted

the provisions of FASB ASC 820-10-65 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures SFAS No 157 for

financial assets and liabilities FASB ASC 820-1-65

defines fair value as the price that would be received

to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants

fair value measurement assumes that the transaction

to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the

principal market for the asset or liability or in the

absence of principal market the most advantageous

market for the asset or liability
Valuation techniques

use certain inputs to arrive at fair value Inputs to

valuation techniques are the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing the asset or liability

They may be observable or unobservable FASB

ASC 820-1-65 establishes fair value hierarchy for

valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable

inputs The fair value hierarchy is as follows

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for

the asset or liability such as interest rates volatilities

prepayment speeds or credit risks or inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by market data

by correlation or other means

Level Inputs Unobservable inputs for determining

the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an

entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the assets or

liabilities

95

FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES Nc



75 Guaranteed Great Years

The following table summarizes financial assets measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2009

segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2009 Using

Assets/Liabilities

Measured at

Fair Value

December 31 2009

Securities Available for Sale

Securities classified as available for sale are reported at

fair value utilizing Level Level and Level inputs

For these securities the Company obtains fair value

measurements from an independent pricing service

The fair value measurements consider observable

data that may include dealer quotes market spreads

cash flows market yield curves prepayment speeds

credit information and the instruments contractual

terms and conditions among other things Cash flow

valuations were performed on Level securities Level

securities consist of two municipal bonds from the

same issuer that were purchased in 2009 for $9.0

million There has been no gain or loss recognized in

2009 on the securities valued utilizing Level inputs

Cash flow valuations were done on these securities to

facilitate in the calculation of the other-than-temporary

impairment charge taken on those securities in 2008

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information

Impaired Loans

Certain financial assets such as impaired loans are

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis that is

the instruments are not measured at fair value on an

ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments

in certain circumstances such as when there is

evidence of impairment The fair value of impaired

loans was $31.3 million at December 31 2009 The

fair value of impaired loans is measured by either the

fair value of the collateral as determined by appraisals

or independent valuation Level or the present

value of expected future cash flows discounted at the

effective interest rate of the loan Level

Quoted Prices

In Active

Markets For

Identical Assets

Level

Certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities

are measured at fair value on non-recurring basis

including assets and liabilities related to reporting

units measured at fair value in the testing of goodwill

impairment as well as intangible assets and other non

financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for

impairment assessment

Note 20
Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature

and are dependent upon number of significant

assumptions associated with each instrument or

group of similar instruments including estimates of

discount rates risks associated with specific financial

instruments estimates of future cash flows and relevant

available market information Fair value information is

intended to represent an estimate of an amount at

which financial instrument could be exchanged in

current transaction between willing buyer and seller

engaging in an exchange transaction However since

there are no established trading markets for significant

portion of the Companys financial instruments the

Company may not be able to immediately settle

financial instruments as such the fair values are not

necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be

realized through immediate settlement In addition

the majority of the financial instruments such as loans

and deposits are held to maturity and are realized or

paid according to the contractual agreement with the

customer

Available for sale securities $249480

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

fin thousands

$16943 $223537 $9000
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Quoted market prices are used to estimate fair values

when available However due to the nature of the

financial instruments in many instances quoted

market prices are not available Accordingly estimated

fair values have been estimated based on other

valuation techniques such as discounting estimated

future cash flows using rate commensurate with

the risks involved or other acceptable methods Fair

values are estimated without regard to any premium

or discount that may result from concentrations of

ownership of financial instruments possible income

tax ramifications or estimated transaction costs The

fair value estimates are subjective in nature and

involve matters of significant judgment and therefore

cannot be determined with precision Fair values

are also estimated at specific point in time and

are based on interest rates and other assumptions

at that date As events change the assumptions

underlying these estimates the fair values of financial

instruments will change

Disclosure of fair values is not required for certain

items such as lease financing investments accounted

for under the equity method of accounting obligations

of pension and other postretirement benefits premises

and equipment other real estate prepaid expenses

the value of long-term relationships with depositors

core deposit intangibles and other customer

relationships other intangible assets and income

tax assets and liabilities Fair value estimates are

presented for existing on- and off-balance sheet

financial instruments without attempting to estimate

the value of anticipated future business and the

value of assets and liabilities that are not considered

financial instruments In addition the tax ramifications

related to the realization of the unrealized gains and

losses have not been considered in the estimates

Accordingly the aggregate fair value amounts

presented do not purport to represent and should not

be considered representative of the underlying market

or franchise value of the Company

Because the standard permits many alternative

calculation techniques and because numerous

assumptions have been used to estimate the fair

values reasonable comparison of the fair value

information with other financial institutions fair value

information cannot necessarily be made

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair

values of each class of financial instruments that are not

disclosed above are as follows

Cash and due from banks interest-bearing

deposits with banks federal funds sold and

federalfunds purchased

These items are generally short-term in nature and

accordingly the carrying amounts reported in the

Statements of Condition are reasonable approximations

of their fair values

Interest-bearing time deposits with banks

Time deposits are purchased from other financial

institutions for investment purposes Time deposits with

banks do not have balance greater than $250000

Interest earned is paid monthly and not reinvested as

principal The carrying amount of interest-bearing time

deposits with banks approximates its fair value

Investment securities

Fair values are principally based on quoted market

prices If quoted market prices are not available fair

values are based on quoted market prices of comparable

instruments or the use of discounted cash flow analyses

Loans held for sale

Fair values of mortgage loans held for sale are based

on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing

market prices

Loans net

Market values are computed present values using net

present value formulas The present value is the sum of

the present value of all projected cash flows on an item

at specified discount rate The discount rate is set as

an appropriate rate index plus or minus an appropriate

spread

Accrued interest receivable

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable

approximates its fair value

Deposits

Market values are actually computed present values

using net present value formulas The present value is

the sum of the present value of all projected cash flows

on an item at specified discount rate The discount

rate is set as an appropriate rate index plus or minus

an appropriate spread
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Accrued interest payable

The carrying amount of accrued interest payable

approximates its fair value

Borrowings

The carrying amount of federal funds purchased and

other short-term borrowings approximate their fair

values The fair value of the Companys long-term

borrowings is actually computed present values using

net present value formulas The present value is the

sum of the present value of all projected cash flows on

item at specified discount rate The discount rate

is set as an appropriate rate index plus or minus an

appropriate spread

Other unrecognized financial instruments

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is

estimated using the fees charged to enter into similar

legally binding agreements taking into account the

remaining terms of the agreements and customers

credit ratings For fixed-rate loan commitments fair

value also considers the difference between current

levels of interest rates and the committed rates

The fair values of letters of credit are based on fees

charged for similar agreements or on estimated cost to

terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with

the counterparties at the reporting date At December

31 2009 and 2008 the fair value of guarantees

under commercial and standby letters of credit was

immaterial
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There is no material difference between the contract

amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance

sheet items that are primarily comprised of short-term

unfunded loan commitments that are generally priced

at market

Note 21
Concentrations of Credit and

Other Risks

Personal commercial and residential loans are

granted to customers most of who reside in northern

and southern areas of Louisiana Although we have

diversified loan portfolio significant portions of

the loans are collateralized by real estate located

in Tangipahoa Parish and surrounding parishes

in southeast Louisiana Declines in the Louisiana

economy could result in lower real estate values which

could under certain circumstances result in losses to

the Company

The distribution of commitments to extend credit

approximates the distribution of loans outstanding

Commercial and standby letters of credit were granted

primarily to commercial borrowers Generally credit

is not extended in excess of $8.0 million to any single

borrower or group of related borrowers

Approximately 33.6% of the Companys deposits are

derived from local governmental agencies These

governmental depositing authorities are generally

long-term customers number of the depositing

authorities are under contractual obligation to maintain

their operating funds exclusively with us In most

cases the Company is required to pledge securities

or letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan

Bank to the depositing authorities to collateralize their

deposits Under certain circumstances the withdrawal

of all of or significant portion of the deposits of one

or more of the depositing authorities may result in

temporary reduction in liquidity depending primarily

on the maturities and/or classifications of the securities

pledged against such deposits and the ability to

replace such deposits with either new deposits or other

borrowings

99

The estimated fair values and carrying values of the financial instruments at December 31 2009 and 2008 are

presented in the following table

December 31

2009

Estimated

2008

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

in thousands

Estimated

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Interest-earning time deposits with banks

Securities available for sale

Securities held to maturity

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans net

Accrued interest receivable

Liabilities

Deposits

Borrowings

Accrued interest payable

46718

249480

12349

2547

581983

5807

$799746

31929

2519

46718

249480

12462

2547

584248

5807

$802183

31918

2519

78017

21481

114406

24756

944

599887

4611

$780372

18122

3033

78017

21578

114406

24936

944

606486

4611

$786928

18224

3033
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Note 22
Litigation

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings in

the normal course of its business It is Managements

belief that the ultimate resolution of such claims will

not have material adverse effect on the Companys

financial position or results of operations

Note 23
Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business various outstanding

commitments and contingent liabilities arise that are

not reflected in the accompanying financial statements

Included among these contingent liabilities are certain

provisions in agreements entered into with outside

third parties to sell loans that may require the

Company to repurchase if it becomes delinquent within

specified period of time

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets

Note 24

Subsequent Events

On January 27 2010 the Company sold its Benton

banking center located at 196 Burt Boulevard to

the Law Enforcement District of Bossier for sale

price of $1.8 million The Law Enforcement District

of Bossier paid $1.1 million and the remainder was

donated by the Company new Benton banking

center was opened at 189 Burt Boulevard Benton

Louisiana The cost of the new banking center

including land building furniture and equipment

totaled approximately $1.5 million

Note 25
Condensed Parent Company
Information

The following condensed financial information reflects

the accounts and transactions of First Guaranty

Bancshares Inc parent company only for the dates

indicated

2009

December 31

in thousands

2008

Cash

Investment in bank subsidiary

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Junior subordinated debentures

Other liabilities

Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

5547

89363

409

$95319

384

94935

$95319
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64917

662

$65672

185

65487

$65672
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First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Statements of Income

Years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Operating Income

Dividends received from bank subsidiary $5109 7200 19630

Other income
143

Total operating income 5113 7343 19634

Operating Expense

Interest expense
114 152 233

Other expense
501 703 448

Total operating expense
615 855 681

Income before income tax expense and increase in equity

in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 4498 6488 18953

Income tax benefit 214 289 220

Income before increase in equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiary
4712 6777 19173

Decrease in equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 2883 1265 15713

Net Income 7595 5512 3460

Less preferred stock dividends 594

Net income available to common shareholders $7001 5512 3460
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First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income
7595 5512 3460

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Provision for deferred income taxes 16
Increase Decrease in equity in undistributed

earningsof subsidiary 2883 1265 15713
Net change in other liabilities 83 65 17
Net change in other assets 275 132 49

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 4904 6694 19107

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payments for investments in and advances to subsidiary 16350 5489
Cash paid in excess of cash received in acquisition 11790
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 16350 17279

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from purchased funds and other short-term borrowings 17640
Repayments of purchased funds and other short-term borrowings 17640
Repayment of long-term debt 3093
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 20699
Dividends paid 3799 3557 1779
Net Cash Provided by Used In Financing Activities 16900 6650 1779

Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 5454 44 49
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 93 49
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 5547 93 49
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Market for Registrants Common
Equity Related Stockholder Matters

and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

There is no liquid or active market for our common

stock The Companys shares of common stock are not

traded on stock exchange or in any established over-

the-counter market Trades occur primarily between

individuals at price mutually agreed upon by the

buyer and seller Trading in the Companys common

stock has been infrequent and such trades cannot be

characterized as constituting an active trading market

The following table sets forth the high and low

bid quotations for First Guaranty Bancshares Inc.s

common stock for the periods indicated These

quotations represent trades of which we are aware

and do not include retail markups markdowns or

commissions and do not necessarily reflect actual

transactions As of December 31 2009 there were

5559644 shares of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

common stock issued and outstanding At December

31 2009 First Guaranty Bancshares Inc had

1356 shareholders of record

Our stockholders are entitled to receive dividends

when and if declared by the Board of Directors

out of funds legally available for dividends We have

paid consecutive quarterly cash dividends on our

common stock for each of the last ten years and

the Board of Directors intends to continue to pay

regular quarterly cash dividends The

dividends in the future will depend on

financial condition liquidity and capital requirements

regulatory restrictions the general economic and

regulatory climate and ability to service any equity or

debt obligations senior to common stock

There are legal restrictions on the ability of First

Guaranty Bank to pay cash dividends to First Guaranty

Bancshares Inc Under federal and state law we are

required to maintain certain surplus and capital levels

and may not distribute dividends in cash or in kind

if after such distribution we would fall below such

levels Specifically an insured depository institution

is prohibited from making any capital distribution to

its shareholders including by way of dividend if after

making such distribution the depository institution

fails to meet the required minimum level for any

relevant capital measure including the risk-based

capital adequacy and leverage standards

Additionally under the Louisiana Business Corporation

Act First Guaranty Bancshares Inc is prohibited from

paying any cash dividends to shareholders if after

the payment of such dividend if its total assets would

be less than its total liabilities or where net assets are

less than the liquidation value of shares that have

preferential right to participate in First Guaranty

Bancshares Inc.s assets in the event First Guaranty

Bancshares Inc were to be liquidated

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc must seek prior

approval from the Federal Reserve Bank before paying

dividends to its shareholders

We have not repurchased any shares of our outstanding

common stock during the past year

ability to pay

earnings and

2009

High Low Dividend

2008

High Low Dividend

Quarter Ended

March $25.00 $17.00 $0.16 $25.00 $24.30

June 17.00 17.00 0.16 25.00 25.00

September 17.00 15.00 0.16 25.00 25.00

December 17.00 12.00 0.16 25.00 25.00

$0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16
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The ne graph below compares the cumulahve total nturn for the Companys common stock with the curnulabve total

return of both the NASDAQ Stock Market Index for U.S companies and the NASDAG Index for bank stocks for the

perod December 31 2004 through December 31 2009 The total return assumes the reinvestment of all dividends

and is based on 5100 invcstment on December 31 2004 It so reflects the stock price on Deceftber 31st of each

year shown although this prire reflects only sma number of transactions involving small number of directors of the

Company or affiliates or associates and cannot be taken as an accurate indicator of the market value of the Companys

common stock

dative Total Return of First Gua anty Bines iares ne
Compard to NASDAQ Ba Index and NASDAQ Comp te Index

200

First Guaranty Bancshares ific

150

NASDAQ Bank Index

NASDAQ Composite Index

100

50

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Total Returns for the Year

2005 2006 2007 2008

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc $139 $168 $179 $189

NASDAQ Bank Index 168 $186 $145 $110

NASDAQComposite Index $101 $110 $121 72

We have no equity based benefit plans
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Corporate Information

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will convene at

200 p.m Central Daylight Time CDT on

Thursday May 20 2010 in the Auditorium

First Guaranty Square 400 East Thomas Street

Hammond Louisiana

Corporate Headquarters

First Guaranty Square

400 East Thomas Street

Hammond Louisiana 70401-3320

Telephone 985 345-7685

Stock Transfer Agent

First Guaranty Bank

Corporate Trust

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Certified Public Accountants

Castaing Hussey Lolan LLC

New Iberia Louisiana

Financial and General Information

Persons seeking financial or other information about the Company are invited to contact

Michele LoBianco

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Telephone 985 375-0459

Notice to Stockholders

copy of the First Guaranty Bancshares Inc Annual Report filed on Form 10-K with

the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission can be accessed through the Companys

website at www.fgb.net or is available without charge by writing

Michele LoBianco

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Telephone 985 375-0459
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